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Major Financial Indicators and Ratios

FEMBEERLER
For the yearended 31stMarcch & ZE= A =+—B I FE

Financial Highlights
A

% changes

2011 2010 increase/(decrease)
—B——F —T-TF JFHHLXEHE O
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FET TET
Operating results RexE
Revenue Wz 739,832 717,197 3.2
Gross profit EF 124,108 113,579 9.3
Operating profit AL T 20,226 7,896 156
Net Profit #EF 14,674 3,496 320
HK cents HK cents %
Bl (il
Per share data BRER
Earnings per share HIREF 5.8 0.9 544
Total dividend per share B LA B 35 1.5 133
Net assets per share BREEFE 955 9038 5.2
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FET FETT
Financial position BRI
Total assets BEMAE 316,367 317,785 (0.5)
Net assets BEFE 191,055 181,582 52
Financial ratio Jo/pi Yo
Current ratio (Times) RENEE R () 2.4 2.2 9.1
Quick ratio (Times) RENEE R () 1.0 1.1 (9.1)
Gross margin (%) EFZR(%) 16.8% 15.8% 1%
Net gearing ratio (%) FEE BB (%) 5.7% 7.7% (2%)
Days EVS
= H
Turnover ratio PR
Inventory turnover FERE 98 90 8.9
Debtors turnover FEUT BE A B 40 40 -
Creditors turnover FE(SBRAEE 27 27 -
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For the yearended 31stMarcch & ZE = A =+—B I FE

Revenue by Geographical Segments (by %) Revenue by Business Segments (by %)
RESEzWE(REDLLETR) REBIEzWR(RBDLLETR)

P

/

M Hong Kong &% 58% M Electronic Trading Business &+ & & %75 78%
I Asia-Pacific region (other than Hong Kong) g5 A th & (B ERIMN) 31% B Computer Business &5 i % 7% 22%
M South Africa E53F 8%
B Europe BN 1%
W Others E-fthith[& 2%
Revenue Profit (Loss) Attributable to Shareholders
\\M it N — |
Wz REREE SR (EE)
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HK$ in million
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CEOQO’s Statement
A7 AR

Financial Result

In 2010, the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) benefited from the
recovery of worldwide economy from severe global economic crisis which
broke out at the end of 2008 and persisted in 2009. For the financial year
ended 31st March 2011, the Group recorded a turnover of around HK$740
million, which represented an increase of about 3.2% when comparing
with that of approximately HK$717 million in the previous year. Gross
profit increased significantly by about 8.8% to around HK$124 million
from HK$114 million last year, while the gross profit margin increased
by approximately 1% from about 15.8% last year to around 16.8%. The
Group’s operating profit amounted to approximately HK$20 million (31st
March 2010: HK$8 million), and the profit attributable to shareholders
was approximately HK$11.6 million (31st March 2010: HK$1.8 million).
This represented earnings per share of HK$0.06 (HK$0.01 as at 31st
March 2010). The Board has resolved that subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, a final dividend
of HK2 cents per ordinary share shall be declared for the year under
review, totalling HK$4 million to the shareholders whose names appeared
on the register of members on 12th August 2011. The final dividend, if
approved, is expected to be paid on 23rd August 2011.

BROEEARAT | —8—% /2 ——FF§

MERE

—EE\FRBRENEHREBEERELE_TTA
FAE_Z-TFHEEFRRQEZGERE - ARFR
HMBRR([AKE ) TEMRE - AEEHE—
E——F-A=+-BHUMRFEESEXRIR
tREENTFEEL  WRLEFEHNLE-—TLEEE
TCHYE R ETH4I32%  ENREFO—F—THAE

EHMEHA168% + B EFEFH158% L& EAL
1%« AEBRERENOBE-_TEBST(—E—FF
ZA=1+—8: \a8%8n)  MRREGHREMNOA
—T—BAtEBET(ZE—ZTE=A=+—8:
—BN+EET) HERERAEF0006ET(R=Z
—ZEF=A=+—8 : FR0BIT)  c EESHR
FREREERRBFEAS LiER - SROEFE
MR =ZZE——FN\A+ZBRIBRERMZBREEIR
KR EERLBR2EN - AENEESBT - KH
BB — B RAE - EEER = ——FN\A=+=
BIRA o




CEQ’s Statement
TR R

During the year under review, the Group continued to develop its two
core business lines, namely (1) the distribution of electronic components,
automation parts and equipment under the MBBIEBN seryice branding
(the “Electronic Trading Business”) and (2) computer related business (the
“Computer Business”) which includes (i) the retail sales of computer and
mobile accessories under the [Z1VideoCom retail branding (the “Computer
Retail Business”), (ii) the distribution on computer products under the

IT outsourcing and solution services to small and medium enterprises
in Hong Kong (the “IT Outsourcing Services”). The Group's turnover of
Electronic Trading Business during the year under review recorded an
increase of approximately 2.9% to about HK$575 million from about
HK$559 million in the previous year, while turnover of Computer Business
increased approximately 4.4% to about HK$165 million from about
HK$158 million in the previous year.

For the year ended 31st March 2011, the Group's total operating expenses
decreased slightly by approximately 1.9% to around HK$106 million
(31st March 2010: HK$108 million). During the year under review, the
Group continued to strictly control the headcount which accounted for
large proportion of the Group's operating cost. As at 31st March 2011,
the headcount was reduced by about 3.8% from 444 full-time employees
last year to 427 full-time employees. Among the Group’s subsidiaries,
Singapore subsidiary implemented the headcount control obviously. There
were 18 full-time employees in Singapore subsidiary, which represented
a marked decrease of about 33.3% when comparing with 27 full-time
employees in the previous year.

During the year under review, the Group’s inventory level significantly
increased about 15.6% to around HK$178 million (31st March 2010:
HK$154 million). It was attributable to the new distribution policy of one
of the major suppliers. Under the new policy, the Group is required to buy
the electronic components at the standard market price prescribed by the
supplier in advance. After selling the electronic components to customers,
the Group then claimed the difference between the standard market price
and distribution price from the supplier. Beyond any doubt, the Group's
cash flow would be tightened particularly during peak season, however, it
was believed that there was no impact to the Group's financial as a whole
since the Group had adequate working capital and sufficient banking
facilities as back-up.

REBEE  AEBBESERMAZOES - B1)
MOBIGON . f2 A BB T L - A ELARERS Y
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Development Strategy and Outlook

Because of the appreciation of Renminbi and increasing labour cost in China,
it is expected that most of the multinational companies would extend their
productions in Asia other than China. So the Group will continuously expand
the market share and penetrate in Asia market. In May 2011, the Group
set up an associated company in Thailand. The Thailand's associate serves
the electronic manufacturing service (EMS) customers and the domestic
manufacturers. The population in Thailand is over 62 million and the Group
expects that there are great potential for computer business development in
the foreseeable future.

The Group supports local design and keens on developing a comprehensive
engineer network, which is an important asset to the Group’s future.
Introducing LCD Display agent line, Clover Display Limited, the Group now
offers two key components, MCU and LCD Display. This allows the Group
to develop closer relationship with engineers through the collaboration with
Clover Display Limited.

At the same time, the Group now provides full ranges of product lines,
including Wifi Modules, RF Receiver Modules, Motors, Sensors, Power
Relays, Large Can Electrolytic Capacitors and Switches. That allows the Group
to further expand the business from consumer electronics market to industrial
segment.

In the Computer Business, the sought-after of iPhone and iPad provide
business opportunities to the Group. To catch up the chance, the Group
will introduce more accessories for iPhone and iPad in Computer Retail and
Distribution Business, such as screen protection films and #'recueear
speakers.

CLOVER
display

" & 2 nm
28 Years Experience in LCD Industry

Development & manufacture of

{8 CLOVER
1%‘ DisPLAY SHIERTRA
EBTN LCD
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Appreciation

| would like to thank our management team and all our staff members for
their efforts and significant contributions to the Group during the past year.
In addition, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders,
institutional investors, customers, bankers and business partners for their
continued support to and confidence in the Group.

By order of the Board
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24th June 2011
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Management Discussion a

Business Review

During the year under review, the Group’s continued to focus on its
two core business operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic
components, automation parts and equipment under the MOBIEEN serying
branding (the “Electronic Trading Business”); and (2) computer related
business (the “Computer Business”) which includes (i) the retail sales of
computer and mobile accessories under the [1VideoCom retail branding (the

LS sa ae w RS

“Computer Retail Business”), (ii) the distribution on computer products

..........

provision of IT outsourcing and solution services to small and medium
enterprises in Hong Kong (the “IT Qutsourcing Services”). The Electronic
Trading Business and the Computer Business accounted for about 78%
and 22% of the Group's total turnover for the fiscal year ended 31st
March 2011 respectively.

By analysis on the two core business operations, the gross profit margin
of the Electronic Trading Business and Computer Business increased
slightly to around 18.2% and 12% respectively (31st March 2010: about
17% and about 11.7%).

ERAEEERAF | =B—F /"B —FFR§

o B o s S 20 AT

¥ EEE

REFEFE  AEEEESIRHREMARDEE -
EN(1) ;A MOBIEON o b == 2 7 o4 - B ED{L AR
BRIMEB(BFEEER])  ROEKBWES
(TEISER]) - 2 oh e 3E() s Vidalm 52 e o s
MEMBRFREETELB((ERTEEB]) i)
2D SR EIKES D HEL ((ED HEK A
(i) BB /N R GUE S RHREE B R AR R 5 RR TS
([EMESRS]) - EFEELBRBIEBH A
AEEREE-T——F-A=t+—BLHHREES
KA S EE 4780, T3 22% o

HMAZLEBEHIIT ETEEEBLERERZE
RS BB EFEH918.2% K 12%( —F—
=+—8 : “71%RL1T%) o

TFE=H




Management Discussion and Analysis

B BELRE W i S A

Electronic Trading Business

Hong Kong

For the fiscal year ended 31st March 2011, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$575 million from the Electronic Trading Business,
which represented a slight increase of about 2.9%, when compared with
that of approximately HK$559 million for the last year.

During economic recession, many customers managed to keep their
inventory at very low level. When the economy recovered in 2010, there
was component shortage and customers’ production lines were affected.
The Group's inventory has minimized this effect as the Group has done
the best to negotiate with vendors about the products supply so as to
meet customers’ demand. Even though there was shortage of electronic
components, the Group still actively assisted the customers in new project
development by working closely with engineers.

Lighting industry was a booming market. The Group has introduced
different integrated circuits and Power LED for lighting applications.
As a result, the Group was able to provide turnkey solution to lighting
customers.

In the meantime, the Group has entered into agentship agreement with
Clover Display Limited (provider of LCD/LED display) and Panasonic
Electric Works (Hong Kong) Co. Ltd. (provider of connectors, relays,
switches and factory automation products) during the year under review.

Atmel QTouch Suite
Touch Solutions

ETEEXRY
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Overseas

During the year under review, the business of the Group’s overseas
subsidiaries recorded a turnover of approximately HK$167 million, representing
an increase of about 5.7% when compared with that of approximately HK$158
million for the last year. Among the Group's oversea subsidiaries, South Africa
subsidiary’s performance was the most outstanding. It recorded a turnover of
about HK$60 million which increased significantly by approximately 22.4%
from HK$49 million in last year. The subsidiary in South Africa provided full
series of power supply products which was able to fulfill the great demand of
power supply products in different market segments like industrial, medical
and automation.

In terms of geographical segments, the contributions of Hong Kong, the Asia-
Pacific region (other than Hong Kong), South Africa, Europe and other regions,
accounted for: 58%, 31%, 8%, 1% and 2% respectively of the Group's total
turnover during the year under review.

Computer Business

Computer Retail Business

The Computer Retail Business, mainly the operation of [:1VideoCom | recorded
a turnover of HK$28 million for the year ended 31st March 2011 (for the year
ended 31st March 2010: about HK$28 million), which represented a loss of
around HK$3.5 million (for the year ended 31st March 2010: about HK$4.7
million). The loss of Computer Retail Business was greatly decreased because
the Group implemented cost control measures for ease monitoring.

The Group continuously to execute the policy of relocating the retail outlets
out of traditional computer centers to trendy shopping mall. During the year
under review, one of the retail shops locating in Sham Shui Po computer
center was closed and a new retail outlet was set up in Tuen Mun Butterfly
Estate in October 2010. Currently the Group has total 8 retail shops, 5 of them
located in trendy shopping mall in Sha Tin, Yuen Long, Tuen Mun, Tseung
Kwan 0 and Tin Shui Wai.

Computer Distribution Business

APower Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Group carrying on the Computer
Distribution Business has recorded a turnover of HK$119 million for the year
ended 31st March 2011, representing a rise of about 1.7% from about HK$117
million. During the year under review, consumer confidence was boosted and
therefore domestic consumption was regained. Demand for flash memory card
increased with the popularity of smartphones and digital cameras. Moreover,
APower Holdings Limited has successfully introduced fashionable products to
branded chain stores, which further enhanced the dealer channels.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B BELRE W i S A

During the year, the Group has signed agency agreements with Mobile Link
Technology Limited (provider of feminine mobile accessories under the brand
femme de Pivot), Shine Property Company Limited (provider of ear headphone
under the brand Mosaic), Schneider Electric (HK) Ltd. (provider of electrical
and automation management) and NVC Lighting Technology Hong Kong
Limited (provider of energy saving light).

IT Outsourcing Services

The IT Qutsourcing Services have recorded a turnover of about HK$19 million,
representing a significant increase of about 36% from about HK$14 million
during the year under review. Many enterprises planned to expand their
business and willing to invest in information technology. At the same time, the
Group has successfully bid projects from Hospital Authority’s vendors which
contributed to the increment of turnover.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has a strong financial foundation. As at 31st March 2011, it had
cash and bank balances of approximately HK$42 million (as at 31st March
2010: HK$52 million). About 48% and 27% were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and US dollars respectively. The balance of approximately 9%, 7%,
7%, 1%, and 1% of its total cash and bank balances were correspondingly
denominated in South African Rand, Malaysia Ringgit, Renminbi, New
Taiwan dollars and Singapore dollars. The Group's total assets amounted
to approximately HK$316 million (as at 31st March 2010: HK$318 million).
Net assets per share amounted to approximately HK$0.96 (as at 31st March
2010: HK$0.91). Dividend and basic earnings per share were approximately
HK$0.035 and HK$0.06 respectively (as at 31st March 2010: HK$0.015 and
HK$0.01 respectively).

As at 31st March 2011, the Group had banking facilities for overdrafts,
loans and trade finance from several banks totalling approximately HK$91
million (as at 31st March 2010: HK$172 million), with an unused balance of
approximately HK$38 million (as at 31st March 2010: HK$106 million).

The directors believe the Group's existing financial resources are sufficient to
fulfill its commitments and working capital requirements.

Capital Structure

As at 31st March 2011, the total borrowings of the Group were approximately
HK$53 million (as at 31st March 2010: HK$66 million). These were in the form
of short-term bank loans (including short-term loans and trade finance) for
financing the daily business operations and future development plans. The
majority of Group's bank borrowings as at 31st March 2011 were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. The short-term loans and trade finance were secured
by the Company’s corporate guarantees of around HK$87 million and the
leasehold properties in Singapore (as at 31st March 2010: HK$176 million),
with a maturity term of two to three months, and such short-term loans can be
rolled over afterwards at the Group’s discretion.
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During the year under review, the Group’s borrowings bore interest at rates
ranging from 1.58% to 2.31% per annum (for the year ended 31st March 2010:
1.36% to 2.67% per annum).

Gearing ratio

As at 31st March 2011, the Group’s gross borrowing, which was repayable
within one year, amounted to approximately HK$53 million (as at 31st
March 2010: HK$66 million). After deducting cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$42 million, the Group's net borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$11 million (as at 31st March 2010: HK$14 million). Total
equity as at 31st March 2011 was approximately HK$191 million (as at 31st
March 2010: HK$182 million). Accordingly, the Group’s net gearing ratio,
based on net borrowings to total equity, decreased to 5.7% (as at 31st March
2010:7.7%).

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

Most of the Group's transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi and US dollars. Given that the exchange rate of Hong Kong dollars
against the Renminbi has been and is likely to under control, the HKSAR
Government's policy of linking the Hong Kong dollars to the US dollars remains
in effect, the directors consider that the Group’s risk on foreign exchange
will remain minimal and no hedging or other alternative measures have been
undertaken by the Group. As at 31st March 2011, the Group had no significant
risk exposure pertaining to foreign exchange contracts, interest rates, currency
swaps, or other financial derivatives.

Charges on Assets

As at 31st March 2011, the properties with the carrying value of approximately
HK$10 million have been pledged to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Singapore subsidiary.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st March 2011, the Group had total outstanding operating lease
commitments of approximately HK$22 million (as at 31st March 2010: HK$13
million). In view of the Group’s high level of liquid funds, it is expected that
the Group will be able to fulfill all these commitments without any difficulty.
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st March 2011.
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Employment, Training and Remuneration Policy
As at 31st March 2011, the Group had total of 427 full-time employees
inclusive of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas branches. The Group has also
developed its human resources policies and procedures based on performance,
merits and market conditions. Discretionary bonus is linked to the performance
of the Group as well as individual performances.

Social Responsibilities

The Group is committed to contributing to the community, and it fosters a
corporate team spirit by encouraging staff to take part in various charitable
activities to help the people in need. In additions, the Group is keen on
nurturing the next generation and environmental protection. During the year
under review, the Group was awarded by the Class of Good Wastewi$e Label
of the Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence (HKAEE).

As continuously and constantly to take part into social charity campaigns,
the Group was rewarded the “Caring Company” achievement by 4 years
consecutively. In the future, the Group will maintain its caring spirit and
continuous support for the society as its culture and through developing
consecutive strategic cooperation with tertiary educational associations and
charity organizations, to contribute to the society.
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Directors and Senior Management’s

Hung Kim Fung, Measure,

aged 50, Executive Director

was the Group’s founder and is the Chairman of the Company (“Chairman”)
(starting from 1st April 2011). He obtained an Honorary Doctorate in
Business Administration from Newport University in the United States.
Dr. Hung has more than 30 years of experience in the electronics industry,
and he is responsible for the Group's strategic planning and corporate
policies.

Since 1995, Dr. Hung has been a member of the Executive Committee
of the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Limited (“HKEIA")
and was nominated as Vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Semiconductor
Industry Council, a council under the HKEIA in August 2004. He has served
as an Alternate Member of the General Committee of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries (2003 — 2009).

Dr. Hung has been devoted on new products’ research and development
and cultivating students’ entrepreneurship throughout the years. Besides,
he has also spent huge efforts on public communication and local
education development. He was appointed by City University of Hong
Kong as Chairman of FSE Undergraduate Student Synergistic Innovation
Scheme and as Honorary Chairman of the Advisory Committee of the
Industry Co-operative Education Centre. He has served as the member
of Electronic Engineering Departmental Advisory Committee of City
University of Hong Kong (2005 — 2011). He also serves as the School
Manager of De La Salle Secondary School, NT and Vice President of CEQ
Club.

BRAEEERAT | =28 —2——F5§

o RO AT BLE

HelE

505% @ BITEF
REAEBEZRAMARKRREF(EED (HR=-F
——fFMA—R) BEXEREABRETIRER
B - AELREFTEREBNFLR  AEAE
B R SRS AR B S K BUR ©

B NNAAFHEREEFEBE([HKEADEE - I
R-ZZNFN\ARZIZEB TOER L ERITE
heelek BRR-ZEZZ_TTNFHEEELE
HEEEGEE -

HE TS FREGSBERFIE - HEELLE
By RAERES AHER  BRHREERE - B
BERUMARHRAEFEZEEEF  FBEWHKA
BHERETLETFEHAATEGREBSER  —EF
hE—T——FEFERTARETTIRERAZNAL
BERB  REFAWSHERERBIBSNES
£ o




o OR O BLE

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl,

aged 49, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Deputy Chairman (“Deputy Chairman”)
and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") of the Company. With more than 30
years of experience in the electronics industry, Ms. Yeung is responsible for
the Group's finance, administration and internal control.

In 2004, Ms. Yeung was also made an Associate (Electronics Industry) by
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong, in recognition of her
professional knowledge in electronics, extensive application of existing and
new technology, achievements and contributions to the industry. In 2006, Ms.
Yeung obtained the Master Degree of Business Administration from Lincoln
University.

Ms. Yeung has actively supported tertiary educational activities. Whilst
serving as an Industrial Advisor at a course of ‘Master of Arts in Operations
and Supply Chain Management' of the City University of Hong Kong in 2006.
In recognition of her valuable experience and knowledge in the electronics
engineering industry, she was invited to be the Adjunct Professor in the
Department of Electronic Engineering, City University of Hong Kong in 2007.
She is the wife of the Group Chairman, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Hung Ying Fung,

aged 47, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
He is responsible for the management and the computer retail business
development of the Group and has over 25 years of experience in the
electronics industry. In 2001, he was nominated as the director of the Chamber
of Hong Kong Computer Industry Company Limited. Mr. Hung was nominated
as an executive member of the Sham Shui Po District Commerce & Industrial
Liaison Committee (2009 — 2011), the CLP Local Customer Advisory Committee
of Sham Shui Po District Tenure of Office (2011 — 2012) and the member of
Sub-committee on Promotion of Corporate Volunteering of Social Welfare
Department (2011 — 2012). He is the brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,

aged 48, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the management and business development of
the retail business in PRC of the Group. He has over 27 years of experience in
the electronics and computer industry. He is the brother of Ms. Yeung Man Yi,
Beryl.
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Charles E. Chapman,

aged 62, Independent Non-Executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He was executive
director of Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Limited (“HKEIA")
and managing director of the HKEIA's subsidiary publishing company, the
Hong Kong Electronics Promotions Ltd. from May 1988 to June 2007 when he
retired. Currently Mr. Chapman is a senior industry consultant for a number
of overseas-based trade fair organizers. Prior to joining HKEIA, Mr. Chapman
waorked for 12 years as economics editor at the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council and for 8 years as business editor in a local English-language
newspaper.

Leung Wai Cheung,

aged 46, Independent Non-Executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He is currently the
independent non-executive director of Sino Prosper State Gold Resources
Holdings Ltd, and China Netcom Technology Holdings Limited which are
listed companies on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Dr. Leung is qualified
accountant and chartered secretary with over 23 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management. He graduated from Curtin
University with a Bachelor of Commerce Degree majoring in accounting and
subsequently obtained a postgraduate diploma in corporate administration,
Master of Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
Doctor of Philosophy Degree in Management from the Empresarial University
of Costa Rica and Doctor of Education in Educational Management from
Bulacan State University. He is an associate member of each of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, the Hong Kong Institute Secretaries and
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Apart from a professor of European
University, Dr. Leung is also a visiting lecturer of the Open University of Hong
Kong (LiPACE) and Hong Kong University (SPACE).
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Ku Wing Hong Eric,

aged 55, Independent Non-Executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company (starting from 25
May 2011). He is currently the principal of De La Salle Secondary School, NT
in Hong Kong. He obtained an Honorary Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences
and a Diploma in Education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1979
and 1985 respectively. He has served in De La Salle Secondary School, NT
since 1981 and was appointed as the acting principal in September 2004. He
was then appointed as the principal of the school in June 2007 after attaining
his Certification for Principalship. Mr. Ku is the vice-chairman of the Tai Po
& North District Secondary Schools Area Committee of Hong Kong Schools
Sports Federation (the “Federation”) and the chairman in the Federation’s Tai
Po & North District Competition Committee. He is also the vice-chairman of
the North District Secondary School Principals’ Association.

Wan Lam Keng,

aged 48, Senior Management

is the senior business manager of the Group. Ms. Wan joined the Group
in June 1988 and has over 23 years of experience in retailing and trading
business. She is responsible for the Group’s Urgent Requirement Service
division. She is the wife of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Lee Yiu Kong, Winson,

aged 50, Senior Management

is the general sales manager of the Group. Before he joined the Group in June
1991, he had over 12 years of experience in customer service in the banking
industry. He is responsible for the sales and marketing of the electronic
components of the Group.

Ho Siu Wan,

aged 43, Senior Management

is the financial controller of the Group and the company secretary of the
Company. She is responsible for the financial management as well as human
resources functions of the Group. Ms. Ho holds a professional diploma in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She
joined the Group in May 2001 and has over 21 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, taxation and financial management.
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Tsang Ka Man,

aged 42, Senior Management

is the sales & marketing director of Milliard Devices Limited. Mr. Tsang
graduated from the University of Sunderland with a Bachelor (Hons) Degree
in Digital Systems and Electronic Engineering. Before he joined the Group in
September 2001, he worked for a number of integrated circuit, semiconductors
(Brand from Japan, Korea, etc), sensors, radio frequency & passive
components companies as sales and marketing manager. He is responsible for
sales and marketing activities of integrated circuit, sensors, radio frequency
integrated circuit & passive components (i.e. relay, resistors, capacitors &
inductors...) of the Company in both Hong Kong, China, Taiwan & South-East
Asia market.

Lam Kam Wo,

aged 54, Senior Management

is the managing director of DV Power Limited. Mr. Lam graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher certificate in electronic
engineering and holds a certificate of management studies as well. Besides,
he completed a MBA course in University of East Asia, Macau. Before he
joined the Group in November 2001, he had operated his component trading
business for 17 years. Mr. Lam possessed remarkable sales and marketing
experience in electronic industry for over 29 years.

Lam Sun Hung,

aged 42, Senior Management

is the general chairman of APower Holdings Limited. He has engaged in the
IT industry for more than 25 years and has in depth understanding on the
market trend and market demand. He has earned rich and solid experiences
on the operation of products agentship and distribution. He has taken part in
the industry of environmental protection and energy conservation and to lead
the Group into the environmental protection market. Mr. Lam joined the Group
in April 2002 and is focusing on the development of agent line product and
solutions service business.

Low Mee Seng, Wesley,

aged 43, Senior Management

is the general manager of Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. in Malaysia.
He was graduated from TAFE College in Malaysia with a diploma in electrical
and electronic. Before joining the Group in July 2001, he has a combined
experience of more than 18 years in sales and marketing, manufacturing
and purchasing and he is now responsible for the overall operation of the
Company.

Manny Moutinho,

aged 53, Senior Management

is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group’s South Africa operations. Mr.
Moutinho qualified in electronics and has a business management diploma
from Wits University Business School and has over 26 years experience in the
electronic industry, mostly in components distribution. Mr. Moutinho was the
founder of Mantech in South Africa and joined the Group in December 2001,
through our merger with Mantech in South Africa.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board of Directors is committed to principles of corporate governance
practices and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the
Company emphasize transparency, accountability and independence.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions as set out in the
Code of Corporate Governance Practices (“CGP”) in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year under review except for
the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and CEO should
be separated and should not be performed by the same individual. The
Company did not have a separate Chairman and CEQ as Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl hold the position of the CEO and assumes the duties of the
Chairman during the year under review. The Board believed that vesting
the roles of Chairman and CEQ in the same individual provided the Group
with strong and consistent leadership in the development and execution
of long-term business strategies. On 1st April 2011, Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure has been appointed as an executive director and the Chairman
of the Company to comply with this code provision.

Code Provision A.4.2 provides that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. However, the Bye-laws of the Company
provides that the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman will not be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining the number
of directors to retire. As continuation of the services of the Chairman and
the Deputy Chairman is a key factor to the successful implementation of
any long term business plan, the Board believes that present arrangement
is most beneficial to the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company (“INEDs”) are
not appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation
under Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, all directors
have confirmed that they fully complied with the required standard set out in
the Securities Dealing Code throughout the year under review.

Board of Directors
The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing share value.

The Board comprises a total of seven directors, with four executive directors,
namely Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
(Deputy Chairman and CEQ), Mr. Hung Ying Fung and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix and three INEDs, namely, Mr. Charles E. Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung
and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. One of the INEDs has appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise, which
is required by the Listing Rules. Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl is the wife of Dr.
Hung Kim Fung, Measure. She is also the sister of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix. Mr. Hung Ying Fung is the brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

The Board composition will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Group. The directors” biographical information is set out on
pages 17 to 20.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval and monitoring
of the Group’s long term and short term investments, business strategies and
annual budgets, evaluating the performance of the Group and oversight of
the management. One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide
leadership to the Board such that the Board acts in the best interests of
the Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed and approved by the Board before execution. All directors have
been consulted about any matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. The
Chairman has delegated the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each
Board meeting to the Company Secretary. With the support of the Company
Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and adequate and reliable information is
given to the Board in a timely manner.
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The CEO is responsible for the implementation of corporate goals, business
strategies and policies resolved by the Board from time to time. The CEQ
assumes full accountability to the Board in respect of the Group's operations.

The Company Secretary shall convene a Board meeting on the request of any
one director and 14 days’ notice of Board meeting will be given to all directors.
The Company Secretary shall circulate the Board papers not less than three
days before the Board meeting to enable the directors to clearly understand
and make informed decisions of all on matters to be raised, discussed and
resolved at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary and Qualified
Accountant shall attend all regular Board meetings to advise on corporate
governance, statutory compliance, accounting and financial matters when
necessary. The directors shall have full access to information on the Group
and arrangement has been in place to enable directors to obtain independent
professional advice whenever deemed necessary. The Company Secretary
shall prepare minutes and keep records of matters discussed and decisions
resolved at all Board meetings.

Four regular Board meetings of the year under review were scheduled in
advance at approximately quarterly intervals, two Board meetings had been
convened by the CEQ to discuss one continuing connected transaction and one
connected transaction which were required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules and one Board meeting held on 12th November 2010 was convened
by the CEQ. The directors can attend meetings in person or by means of a
conference telephone or other communications facilities in accordance with
Bye-law 136 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

The senior management is responsible for the daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Board. To this end, the senior management has
to implement, follow up and monitor the business plans, internal control and
corporate governance practices developed by the Board.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

There is no specific term of the appointment of INEDs. But they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the provision of the Bye-laws of the Company.
This deviates from the Code Provision A.4.1 of CGP which requires that non-
executive directors be appointed for specific terms subject to rotation and re-
election by shareholders. The Board considers that this current practice is fair
and reasonable and does not intend to change this practice at the moment.

According to Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws, one third of the
directors for the time being (excluding the Chairman of the Board) shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting. Currently, two
directors are subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting.
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Remuneration Committee and Directors’
Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20th February 2006 to
determine the remuneration structure of the executive directors and senior
management. Its current members include Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, Dr. Leung
Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Ms. Yeung is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(a) to decide, with consultation with the Chairman of the Board, where to
position the Company relative to others in terms of remuneration level
and board composition;

(b) to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors;

(d) to review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to
time;

(e) to review and approve the compensation payable to executive

directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment; and

(f) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee continued to adopt the
management bonus package mechanism of executive directors which provides
that the aggregate amount of management bonuses payable to all directors
in respect of any financial year of the Company shall not exceed 30 per cent.
of the Excess. The “Excess” means the excess amount to be arrived at by
deducting HK$35 million (HK$20 million for the fiscal year of 2011/2012)
from the net profit of the Company (after taxation and minority interests and
payment of management bonuses to all directors for the time being of the
Company but excluding extraordinary and exceptional items).
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Nomination of Directors

The Company does not have a nomination committee but will consider
setting up one at an appropriate time. Currently all new appointments and
re-appointments to the Board are subject to the concurrence of all Board
members whose deliberations are based on the following criteria:

- Integrity

= Independent mindedness

- Possess core competencies that meet the current needs of the
Company and complement the skills and competencies of the existing
directors on the Board

- Able to commit time and effort to carry out duties and responsibilities
effectively

- A good track record of experience at a senior level in corporations/
organizations

- Financially literate

Audit Committee

The current members of the Audit Committee include: Mr. Charles E.
Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs. One member has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them is
employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditors of the
Company.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review. The
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for noting
and for action by the Board where appropriate.

The major duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to consider the appointment of the external auditors, the audit fee,
and any questions of resignation or dismissal of the external auditors;

(ii) to discuss with the external auditors before the audit commences, the
nature and scope of the audit and ensure co-ordination where more
than one audit firm is involved:;

(iii) to review the half year and annual financial statements before
submission to the Board;
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and
final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to discuss (in the
absence of management where necessary);

to review the external auditor's management letter and management'’s
response;

to review the Company’s statement on internal control systems prior
to endorsement by the Board; and

to consider the major findings of internal investigations and
management’s response; and to consider other topics, as defined by
the Board.

During the meetings held in the year under review, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BRAOEEERAT | =28 —B——F5§

reviewed annual results and the financial reports for the year ended
31st March 2011 and the interim results and the financial reports for
the six months ended 30th September 2010;

reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit on
the operations and performance of the Group;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and ensured the Company to comply with the Listing Rules and
other statutory compliance;

reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system;

reviewed the external auditors” management letter and management’s
response; and

reviewed and recommended for approval to the Board the 2010/2011
audit scope and auditors’ remuneration.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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Attendance of Individual Directors BREEHFESETHE

The attendance of individual directors at the Board, Audit Committee and REIEEERN  SESLRFEEL  BEKEES
Remuneration Committee meetings during the year under review is set outin =~ REHFMEE &S v BHEHN T ¢

the table below.

Meetings attended/hold in 2010/2011
R=B—2F =“2——F

HEBITHNEBRE
Audit Remuneration

Committee Committee
Name of Director ERZER FMEES
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Note a) R EiE L (Fista) N/A i A N/A 1@ N/A A~
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl HBEUEZ T 7/7 N/A 73 1/1
Mr. Hung Ying Fung SRS A /7 N/A 5 A N/A 3 A
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix B AE /7 N/A A N/A 73z FR
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapmanst 4= 777 4/4 N/A i A
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFIELT 1/7 4/4 1/1
Mr. Chow Shek Fai (Note b) A58 5 A (FtsEDb) 6/7 4/4 1N
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric (Note c) HK RS A (MdREc) N/A 73 A N/A 3 A N/A 3 F
Notes: BSE
(a) Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure was appointed as executive director and Chairman on 1st  (a) HABEZBLTR T ——FNA—BEZTAH

April 2011. TESHERE -
(b) Mr. Chow Shek Fai passed away on 14th May 2011. (b) BB EER-_E——F A A+ A B o
(c) Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric was appointed as INEDs on 25th May 2011. (c) HKEEER-_E——FRA-_THAEZE
RBUIEMITES -

Auditors’ Remuneration B ELET N &
For the year ended 31st March 2011, the remuneration paid to the Company’s BE-T—F=A=1+—RLEFE XHTA
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, is set out as follows: RRIZBEE R EISAT ME T -

Fee paid/payable
Services rendered P2t IR7% B EAEA

HK$000
TET

Audit services %R 800
Non-audit services — Taxation JERZBURRTS — BiTS 150
Non-audit services — Interim review JEAZ SN BRTE — BRI 150

1,100
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial statements
for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group.

As at 31st March 2011, the directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going
concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 44 to 45.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining effective internal control systems
of the Group. The Group's system of internal control includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, is designed to evaluate the
Group's risk, achieve the division goals and business objectives, maintain
proper accounting records for the provision of financial information for internal
analysis or for publication, comply with relevant legislation and regulations.

During the year, the directors had conducted review of the effectiveness of the
systems of internal control in respect of the financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management function of the Group.

Investors Relations and Communications

The Company establishes different communication channels with shareholders
and investors: (i) the annual general meeting provides a forum for shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board, (i) updated company
news and published announcements of the Group are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and (iii) different electronic
means are opened to the shareholders and investors for communication
channel and investors relations contact is disclosed on page 3 of this annual
report and the Company’s website.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31st March 2011.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the trading and distribution of electronic parts,
components and equipment and computer products and accessories.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2011 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 46.

The directors declared an interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share,
totalling HK$3,000,000, which was paid on 30th December 2010.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2 cents per
ordinary share, totalling HK$4,000,000 for the year ended 31st March 2011.

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 11th August
2011 to 12th August 2011, during which no transfer of shares will be effected,
and the final dividend will be paid on 23rd August 2011. In order to qualify
for the final dividend, all completed share transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at its office situated at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 10th August 2011.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$4,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company's listed shares during the year ended 31st March 2011.

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive directors

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure
(Chairman)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
(Deputy Chairman and CEQ)

Mr. Hung Ying Fung

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix

(Appointed on 1st April 2011)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung
Mr. Chow Shek Fai

Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric

(Passed away on 14th May 2011)
(Appointed on 25th May 2011)

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung
and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric are required to retire under the Company’s bye-
laws and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors of the Company (except Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure) has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
fixed term of three years commencing from 1st April 2001, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors who are proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Share Option Scheme

On 8th August 2003, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to which the eligible persons may be
granted options to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Shares”) upon
and subject to the terms and conditions of the rules of the New Share Option
Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme is in line with current Chapter 17 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The New Share Option Scheme is set up for the purpose of recognizing and
motivating the contribution of the eligible persons to the Company and/or
any of its subsidiaries (the “Subsidiary”) and or any entity in which the Group
holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”). Pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme, the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) may
grant options to (a) any employee (whether full time or part time including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company,
any Subsidiary or any Invested Entity; (b) any non-executive director (including
the independent non-executive director) of the Company, any Subsidiary
or any Invested Entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Company, any Subsidiary or any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of
the Company, any Subsidiary or any Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity
that provides research, development or other technological support to the
Company, any Subsidiary or any Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder of any
member of the Company, any Subsidiary or any Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by any member of the Company, any Subsidiary or any
Invested Entity; (g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of the Company, any
Subsidiary or any Invested Entity; and (h) any joint venture partner or business
alliance that co-operates with any member of the Company, any Subsidiary or
any Invested Entity in any area of business operation or development.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of Shares available for issue under options which may be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme must not exceed 20,000,000
Shares, representing 10 per cent of the Shares in issue as at the date of this
report. No option may be granted to any one person in any 12-month period
which, if exercised in full, would result in the total number of Shares already
issued to him/her under all the options previously granted to him/her which
have been exercised and, issuable to him/her under all the options previously
granted to him/her which are for the time being subsisting and unexercised,
exceeding 1% of the share capital of the Company in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period unless approval by the shareholders of the Company in
a general meeting with such person and his/her associates abstaining from
voting has been obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Subject to the provisions governing expiry of options, an option may be
exercised during the period to be notified by the Board to each grantee but
shall in any event not more than 10 years from the date of grant of the option.
The Board has discretion to set a minimum period for which an option has
to be held before the exercise of the subscription rights attaching thereto.
A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant
of options. The subscription price for Shares under the New Share Option
Scheme will be a price determined by the Board and notified to each grantee
and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares. Subject to the termination provisions, the New Share Option Scheme
shall remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing on the date of its
adoption.

Since the adoption, no options have been granted under the New Share
Option Scheme up to the date of this report.

ERAEEERAF | —B—F /"B —FFR§

Report of the Directo

£ f e

RS E)

IRIEFTRE A ST I T B IR 1 2 B AR AR T AT T 31T
Z D4Rk - & KT 1S 4B H20,000,000/% 815 - 8
ERAIRE BB BTN 210% © BRIERIE
AR RASEEARNARIIE (BEA L RERE
BATERERE)IOE - TR A TRER
T+ AR HMEAREITELRNE R T 2 AR
RRIEMEITZ RN EE - ERLEmMERTA
RERDBERRMARITEZ T BT T
TZRNBE  ARBBZT @A MR —
BARRIBEETRAI% + QIR G TSR ER
AT AT EERRE -

EREBBERE MR ZAEXHRRT - BAER
REZGMEZARAZHRABERITE - H
EEMBER T MFEN R DBRE 2 AR +F
% - BEEGARISEERITRBIREMMRIEE
RIZAR BB 2 &REHIR - BRBAEIRE R
FERHAB1.00/8TT - FTIBRAERT B T iy 2 388
BREFIETIAEZARA - MEBHETE
BERATZ&ERE : (IRORELER(AREE
B)EMRZME R RERPTRLTE : (IRHRE
BEROBHAMAELXABIAE R RERMAER
FHYHE - Rl D 2 EE o EREFRGRR
T FIERCER Bl R FRET T EFERAER o

BERAFTERE S EREANRE BB - &
IREFT B Rt B L B A




Report of the Directors
=R R

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Equity
and Debt Securities

As at 31st March 2011, the interests and short positions of each director
and chief executive of the Company and his/her associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“"SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

@

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

Long/short Personal
Name of Director position Interests
MR "R/ KE fEl A RE 25
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Long -
HHEL L IR
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Long 25,674,000
R ESE "R
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Long -
HEREE R
Notes:

(a) These shares are held by M2B Holding Limited, a company owned as to 50%
by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and the remaining 50% by his wife, Ms.
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl. Accordingly, Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl was deemed to be

interested in 90,000,000 shares of the Company under SFO.

(b)

These shares are held by Bestmark Management Limited, a company owned as
to 50% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and the remaining 50% by his wife,
Ms. Wan Lam Keng. Accordingly, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and Ms. Wan
Lam Keng were deemed to be interested in 30,000,000 shares of the Company
under SFO. The interests of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and Ms. Wan Lam
Keng were in respect of the same interest and duplicated each other.

ESERITHABRKRARERE S
Z s

R-B——F=ZA=1+—8  ARBAEEERT
RABE R A B AT RAR R R EAREAE CF
& AR5 M ARG ([F5RAE GG ) EXVER)
2By AR REST - BB TIRERA
REMREBE S KRB DI FEB2GFE 2B
FARBE S MG RO EXVARET R FE8 D #isk £
METAESETEARRFNRETR([RET
ADEMGARRARERABERSMERAA
([BE2 P )) 2 s BOR R

(i) ARAFPSKRAEAMEIGEITIZEEBR
Number of shares
R EE
Family Total
interests interests Percentage
RikfEz= Gt Bk
90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
(Note a)
(PfF5Ea)
- 25,674,000 12.84%
30,000,000 30,000,000 15%
(Note b)
(Bff7ED)
B & -

#% % 1% {5 F M2B Holding Limited 5 & -
M2B Holding Limited F 3t & 2 {8 £ 35 &
50% s ¢ e T 50% s Al EET
BREZLREE c Al - BEESRR
HERD - BRELZTEERETAA
90,000,000 A1 FR #E 5 #E e ©

(a)

(b) 5% % A% 17 B Bestmark Management Limited
#75  Bestmark Management Limited F 15
BIRR ST A A 50% o - M &k T~50% %
=A|HHEZFERBLLES - Bt -
BIRESH KRS - BERTERE
MRIB 22 R (ER AN 7130,000,000% AR 7
R ER o BEREEREMIBL L
2 gy KRR - REAEEE ©
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Equity
and Debt Securities (continued)

(i)

Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in a

subsidiary — Maxfair Distribution Limited (“Maxfair”)
As at 31st March 2011, each of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, Mr. Hung
Ying Fung and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix has beneficial interests
in his/her personal capacity in the following number of non-voting
deferred shares in Maxfair:

Long/short

Name of Director Nature of interest

BEgE EEME ¥
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Personal and Family (Note)
gLt 18 R K i (M 5E)

Mr. Hung Ying Fung Personal

HEESE fEA

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Personal Long
HERE L EA

Note:  These shares were held as to 300,000 shares by Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl and
the remaining 300,000 shares by her husband Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure

Save as disclosed above and other than certain non-beneficial
ordinary shares of the subsidiaries held in bare trust for the Group, as
at 31st March 2011, none of the directors or the chief executive of the
Company had an interest or short position in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ) as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFQ or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the year, the directors and the chief
executive of the Company (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or exercised,
any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if
applicable) of the Company and/or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO).

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”, at no time during the year was the Company, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries or its
holding company a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
or the chief executive of the Company to hold any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
SFO).
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

During the year, the Company had adopted a Code of Conduct regarding
directors’ transactions in securities of the Company on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code under Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. Having made all reasonable enquires with the directors of
the Company, the Company was of view that the directors had complied with
the said Code of Conduct throughout the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Saved as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report and Note 30 to the financial statements, no contract of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

As at 31st March 2011, so far as is known to the directors of the Company,
the following persons (other than a director or the chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

HHERH 2 RETH
REFE  AARBRABHEFLTAARE
52 P2 RTER - BWENRATTER TR
RIM S0 EF A B E AR TR © [AAT
EF(EL—ARENE  AATRE - EFR
R —HMT HRBTRA -

EENEN 2R

B AR [ BER B | — BRI BRI E0R
BEI - BEEAAR TGN BATFTLY
AEE R S BEATR A A HE R TR
A AARREFEERMEREE AR
ZAaM -

FERREREMALTAERQTRAR
PR 2R

BAAREEMAE R T——F=A=+—
H - RARRRD RBERNDTEBREES R
HAE R DI EXVER S 28235 B 2 A AR AR AR
BrREBZIABZ AL (TBEAAREERTR
BEWT -

Number of shares

Nature of interest
EEME
M2B Holding Limited Beneficial owner
EmEAA
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Interest of controlled Corporation
el ZAESIA TR
Bestmark Management Limited Beneficial owner
BEmEBA

KRB E

Long/short
position Beneficial owner Percentage
HR/RE BanEEA BOL
Long 90,000,000 45%
) (Note (a))

(Fft5E(a))
Long 90,000,000 45%
Sy} (Note (a))

(FftE(a))
Long 30,000,000 15%
) (Note (b))

(Kt E(b))
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company (continued)

Notes:

(a) Please refer to Note (a) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure was deemed to
be interested in 90,000,000 shares of the Company under SFO. The interests of Dr. Hung
Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were in respect of the same interest
and duplicated each other.

(b) Please refer to Note (b) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's

Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2011, according to the register of
interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO,
there was no person who had any interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the Group sold less than 30% of its goods to its five largest
customers.

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers are as follows:

23%
36%

— the largest supplier
—five largest suppliers in aggregate

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

BRAOEEERAT | =28 —B——F5§

Report of the Direc

£ f e

FTERRREMATREAQTRAE
FEEZER 2

PGE

(a) FLMIEERTRESINBARESESZ
W | — ik s o RIBEHFRBEEY - LR
2 18 448 {E R A2 790,000,000 A% A% 12 A #E A #E
&= o BB REGREL T 2RSS RIAR
% AEMREE -

(b FLH EERITRAHREAREBES 2
5 | —ERH D) ©

BEXEREEN  RZE——F=A=+—8"
BARRAIREE 7 LB IGRHIEB6IRTE 2 S
BrOM AR - BEERALTRAR AR R
RO HEERIEES LS G EXVEE2R3
DB Z AR AR R R 2 (AR SOR A -

EEAYN
ARARFRLEET I BEAEREATDL
BEBRHFEABABD 2 EERITHAL -

FREFRHEER
R AEBRETATSHE DRN%Z K -

TR AEBEFEEEFEGRERSLOT
— AHER 23%

— AAMERAET 36%

HMEEE  FEHBATHIMARREESH

HMEEARBIRAESD ) A ZE TR HERNL
B 2 (Efoias o

RAXBEFRE
RIEAAT A ARRE 2 ERL IR - 5

ABEAY  ARATRHERRRDHITRAL

R H25% o




rt of the Directors

ke

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions disclosed in Note 30 to the financial
statements also constituted continuing connected transactions and connected
transactions for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of such connected transactions
are as follows:

Continuing connected transactions

1. The Group occupies the following shops and premises leased from
M-Bar Limited (“M-Bar”). M-Bar is a company beneficially owned
as to 30% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung Ying Fung and as to the remaining 20%
by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom being the executive
directors of the Company.

(a) On 11th February 2008, Mobicon Holdings Limited (“MHL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into
certain lease agreements with M-Bar in respect of Private Car
Parking Space Nos. 6, 7, 24 and 25 on 3rd Floor, Private Car
Parking Space Nos.6 and 13 on 4th Floor, Units 1-11 on 7th
Floor, Units 1-4 on 8th Floor and Units 1-9 on 23rd Floor, New
Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, 104 King Fuk
Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon (collectively, the “Properties”)
for a term of three years from 1st February 2008 to 31st
January 2011 at an aggregate monthly rental of HK$213,000.

On 28th January 2011, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-bar to renew the tenancies in respect of
the same premises for a term of three years commencing
from 1st February 2011 to 31st January 2014 at an aggregate
monthly rental of HK$213,000.

The leased premises are used as the headquarters of the
Group and ancillary use.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)
(continued)

1.

ERAEEERAT | = 2% —F——FFR

(b)

(c)

On 11th February 2008, Videocom Technology (HK) Limited
(“Videocom”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into certain lease agreements with M-Bar
in respect of Unit Nos.32 and 69, 1st Floor, Golden Shopping
Centre, Golden Building, 94A Yen Chow Street, Shamshuipo,
Kowloon, Hong Kong and Shop Nos. 7, 8, 32 and 36, 1st Floor,
Wonder Building, Nos.161-175 Fuk Wa Street, Shamshuipo,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term of three years from 1st
February 2008 to 31st January 2011 at an aggregate monthly
rental of HK$57,000.

On 28th January 2011, Videocom as tenant entered into a
new tenancy agreement with M-Bar to renew the tenancies
in respect of Unit No.69, 1st Floor, Golden Shopping Centre,
Golden Building, 94A Yen Chow Street, Shamshuipo,
Kowloon, Hong Kong and Shop Nos. 7, 8 and 32, 1st Floor,
Wonder Building, Nos.161-175 Fuk Wa Street, Shamshuipo,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term of three years commencing
from 1st February 2011 to 31st January 2014 at aggregate
monthly rentals of HK$38,000.

The leased premises are used for shop purpose.

On 11th February 2008, MHL entered into certain lease
agreements with M-Bar in respect of 1st Floor and Portion of
3rd Floor, Efficiency House, 35 Tai Yau Street, San Po Kong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term of three years commencing
from 1st February 2008 to 31st January 2011 at an aggregate
monthly rental of HK$105,000.

On 28th January 2011, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-Bar to renew the tenancies in respect of
the same premises for a term of three years commencing
from 1st February 2011 to 31st January 2014 at an aggregate
monthly rental of HK$105,000.

The leased premises are used as storage with ancillary office
(in respect of 1st Floor) and godown for storage (in respect of
Portion of 3rd Floor).

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$4,290,000 (Note 30) to M-Bar.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

2.

On 11th February 2008, Videocom as tenant entered into certain lease
agreements with Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (“Mr. Allix Yeung”),
the executive director of the Company, in respect of Shop Nos.13
and 14, Ground Floor, Wonder Building, Nos.161-175 Fuk Wa Street,
Shamshuipo, Kowloan, Hong Kong for a term of 3 years commencing
from 1st February 2008 to 31st January 2011 at an aggregate monthly
rental of HK$11,000.

On 28th January 2011, Videocom entered into a new tenancy
agreement with Mr. Allix Yeung to renew the tenancies in respect
of the same premises for a term of three years commencing from 1st
February 2011 to 31st January 2014 at an aggregate monthly rental of
HK$11,000.

The leased shops are used for retail shop purpose.

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$132,000 (Note 30) to Mr. Allix Yeung.

On 11th February 2008, Videocom as tenant entered into certain lease
agreements with Madam Wan Lam Keng, the wife of Mr. Allix Yeung
in respect of Shop Nos.8 and 15, Ground Floor, Wonder Building,
Nos.161-175 Fuk Wa Street, Shamshuipo, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a
term of 3 years commencing from 1st February 2008 to 31st January
2011 at an aggregate monthly rental of HK$8,500.

On 28th January 2011, Videocom entered into a new tenancy
agreement with Madam Wan Lam Keng to renew the tenancies in
respect of the same premises for a term of three years commencing
from 1st February 2011 to 31st January 2014 at an aggregate monthly
rental of HK$8,500.

The leased shops are used for retail shop purpose.

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$102,000 (Note 30) to Madam Wan Lam Keng.

BERXS#)
BEBEERS(2)

2.

RZZTZNF_A+—8 - B TERE
A m%%némmﬁﬁﬁﬁm—W5
SRIBIC REM TR 13 145 EAR
ﬁﬁ%?%ﬁ&ﬁiﬁ%l@ﬁinﬂi
ETHER# H-TT/\F-A—HBE
ET——F—A=+—HILAH=F"
AFE ££11,00087T °

RZB——F—AZ+/\B - &L
EYEEHRBER LA L —DHHEE
& BT ——F-_A—HEEZZ
—MME—A=+—H1tAH=F " AHE
$11,0007 T °

ZEMRABBRAETERERE -

RAFEE  AEBERIBEBRLES A
©F52132,00078 7T (FI7E30) ©

RZTTN\F_A+—8 - [EiBEERE
A BEBNERKEERS—175
BRI A JE M T 558 K 1555 A £ A5 B AR AT
EZEFEMBRIFIZETHE RS
H-_ZT N \F_A—BRE-_T——F—
A=+—RHILABM=4 - A& H8500%
— 5

RZE——F—A=+/\8 ' IKELHHE
EYEEHREMBL LI —HHHEE
Wi BT ——F_A—HEE=_
—MmE—A=+—H1tAH=F " AFE
85008 7T °

ZEHREEBETERERE -

RAEE @ AEBERENBL XA
4 F932102,00078 7T (F5E30) ©

Mobicon Group Limited | Annual Report 2010/2011



Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

4.

ERAEEERAF | —B—F /"B —FFR§

On 27th September 2010, Mantech Electronics (Proprietary) Limited
(“Mantech Electronics”) as tenant, an indirect 51% owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a lease agreement with UGD Property
(Proprietary) Limited (“UGD Property”), in respect of Erf 45-47 and 49,
New Centre Township, 32 Laub Street, New Centre in South Africa
for a term of 3 years commencing from 1st October 2010 to 30th
September 2013 at monthly rentals of (i) ZAR 75,750 (approximately
HK$84,840) per month for the period from 1st October 2010 to 30th
September 2011; (i) ZAR 83,325 (approximately HK$93,324) per month
for the period from 1st October 2011 to 30th September 2012; and {iii)
ZAR 91,658 (approximately HK$102,657) per month for the period from
1st October 2012 to 30th September 2013. UGD Property is a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Moutinho, a director of Mantech Electronics,
Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited and Mobicon-Mantech Holdings
Limited (all are subsidiaries of the Company) and owns 49% interest
in Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited.

The leased premises are used for office purpose for the Group's
operations in South Africa.

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$864,000 (Note 30) to UGD Property.

On 27th September 2010, Mantech Electronics as tenant entered
into a lease agreement with Tiger Moth Trading No.53 (Proprietary)
Limited (“Tiger Moth”), in respect of 12 Lennox Road, Greyville,
Durban in South Africa for a term of 3 years commencing from 1st
October 2010 to 30th September 2013 at monthly rentals of (i) ZAR
24,290 (approximately HK$27,205) per month for the period from 1st
October 2010 to 30th September 2011; (i) ZAR 26,719 (approximately
HK$29,925) per month for the period from 1st October 2011 to 30th
September 2012; and (iii) ZAR 29,390 (approximately HK$32,917)
per month for the period from 1st October 2012 to 30th September
2013. Tiger Moth is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Moutinho, a
director of Mantech Electronics, Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited
and Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited (all are subsidiaries of the
Company) and owns 49% interest in Mobicon-Mantech Holdings
Limited.

Report of the Directors
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

5.

(continued)
The leased premises are used for office purpose for the Group's
operations in South Africa.

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$295,000 (Note 30) to Tiger Moth.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors)
consider these continuing connected transactions have been
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group
on normal commercial terms and continuation of these transactions in
the future will be beneficial to the Group.

These continuing connected transactions have also been reviewed by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company who have
confirmed that such continuing connected transactions have been (a)
entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (b) conducted on normal commercial terms; and (c)
entered into in accordance with the terms of the lease agreements
governing the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company have also
confirmed that the aggregate value of the transactions were within
the respective maximum amounts as agreed with the Stock Exchange.

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed to the Board that
these continuing connected transactions have received the approval
of the Board and have been entered into in accordance with the terms
of the lease agreements governing the transactions. The auditors of
the Company have also confirmed that the aggregate value of the
transactions were within the respective maximum amounts as agreed
with the Stock Exchange.
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Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended), retained profit and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition
that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of retained profit and contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realizable value
of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st March 2011 amounted to
approximately HK$71,420,000 (2010: HK$70,832,000).

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five financial years is set out on pages 119 to 120.

Auditors

A resolution for the reappointment of Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
as the auditors of the Company for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of directors,

Hung Kim Fung, Measure
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th June 2011
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Independent Auditors’ Report
g S A% B R

Bl # & < &5 F 8

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

to the Shareholders of

Mobicon Group Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mobicon Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 46 to 118, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31st March 2011, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act of Bermuda, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

31/F, Gloucester Tower
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11 Pedder Street
Central
Hong Kong
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Independent Auditors’

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors” judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st March 2011,
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24th June 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ok 1 2 Th WA A R

For the year ended 31st March 2011 #% —F——44 = =—H I

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income

Distribution and selling expenses

General and administrative expenses

Operating profit
Finance costs

Share of losses of associates

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences:

— Subsidiaries
— Associates

Total comprehensive income

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EH
HAb WA
—BEITHEREER

WL

Syl

HAal

B E RN
FEIEEEE N RIER
BRPT1S B A& 7
PSR

FRE A

E2HBALE

FEIEE R -

AARHESREA
FEIEA s

10

2011 2010
=F——F —FFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
739,832 7197
(615,724) (603,618)
124,108 113,579
2,434 2,591
(42,555) (43,850)
(63,761) (64,424)
20,226 7,896
(1,200) (1,018)
(62) (51)
18,964 6,827
(4,290) (3,331)
14,674 3,496
2,800 7,233
(2) -
17,472 10,729
11,591 1,843
3,083 1,653
14,674 3,496
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Aok 1 4 TH WAL i

For the year ended 31st March 2011 #% —~F——4F=H =1 —H IL4F

2011 2010
S “ET-TF

HKS'000 HK$'000
FHT T

Total comprehensive income attributable to: fE{h 2 U ALEEE :

Equity holders of the Company KARERBFEA 10 13,012 6,396
Non-controlling interests JEPEPARREES 4,460 4,333
17,472 10,729

Earnings per share for profit attributable to  €E AR BIAE RS A

the equity holders of the Company JE(E @ FERR 2 F
during the year
— Basic and diluted —H AN #E 11 HK5.80 cents HK0.92 cent

AL Al

Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial A% B FEER G A MMM ET12485E -
statements.
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Statements of Financial Position

BB AR DA

As at 31st March 2011 A —=F——HF=H=1—H

Group Company
REE ARQFE
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g—& _—T T& —g_& _—T &
HKS 000 HK$000  HK$000
FE FE FBT

Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment #1% « = K& 14 13,400 12,804 - -
Intangible assets fbéf% 15 - = = -
Investments in subsidiaries EAM'JLJEEE AZI’RE 16 — - 101,742 101,207
Investments in associates B A T ZIRE 17 1,013 441 = -
14,413 13,245 101,742 101,207
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 18 178,173 153,820 - -
Trade receivables TEWNE ZRE 19 71,752 88,716 - -
Other receivables Hib e TR 30(b) 1,768 7,569 - -
Dividends receivable FEUTIR S - - 6,382 6,329
Current income tax recoverable A] Ug[g] Eﬂ HRFT 1SR 1,848 2,167 - -
Cash and bank balances H4 NiRTT4565 20 42,413 52,268 707 660
301,954 304,540 7,089 6,989
Total assets EEHRE 316,367 317,785 108,831 108,196
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables BB SRR 21 43,920 49,831 = -
Other payables HibfER I 30(c) 25,596 18,139 705 658
Short-term bank loans RERIRITE X 22 53,382 66,105 - -
Current income tax liabilities BIEAPFSFi B & 2,168 1,966 - -
125,066 136,041 705 658
Net current assets REEEEE 176,888 168,499 6,384 6,331
Total assets less current EEZEBERAEBERE
liabilities 191,301 181,744 108,126 107,538
Non-current liabilities 3|E,;.L§11E1§
Deferred income tax liabilities #EIE A/ F: & (& 23 246 162 = =
Net assets BEFEE 191,055 181,582 108,126 107,538

Capital and reserves AARERBFEA
attributable to the equity FE{LBR A< 2 245
holders of the Company

Share capital [N 24 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Reserves & 25 150,619 143,045 88,126 87,538

170,619 163,045 108,126 107,538
Non-controlling interests JEIZ= R #EZS 20,436 18,537 = =
Total equity R 191,055 181,582 108,126 107,538

Hung Kim Fung, Measure Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
HElE HHE
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
= B EERTTIARS,
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Balance at
Tst April 2009

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests

Dividends of the Company:

2009 final dividend

2010 interim dividend

‘ﬁ

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B A s T

For the year ended 31st March 2011 #% & ——4=H = —H L4

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ANERRISE AR
Reserves
]
Non-
Share Share Capital Translation Retained Total controlling Total

capital premium  reserve  reserve profits  reserves interests equity
Bx  ROBE REARE RERE SEEN  REST FERER EREE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET THT TET TET BT BT THET BT
(Note 24) (Note)
(PzEas) (PaE)

ek 20,000 16,706 800 (2115) 124,258 139,649 16,441 176,090

FAZERALE
- - - 4,553 1,843 6,396 4333 10,729

BT IR R

IR - - - = = = (2,237) (2,237)
ARARS -
“TTAERBRE - = = = (2,000) (2,000) = (2,000)
“E-TERHRE - = = = (1,000) (1,000) = (1,000)

= = = = (3,000) (3,000) (2,237) (5,237)

Balance at R-Z-ZF
31st March 2010 =A=t-HAz&8H 20,000 16,706 800 2,438 123,101 143,045 18,537 181,582
Representing: HER
2010 final dividend —Z-TERERE 2,000
Others Hi 121,101
123,101
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st March 2011 #Z% —F——F =1 =+—H IL4FE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AARRERE AL
Reserves
i
Non-
Share Share Capital Translation Retained Total controlling Total

capital premium  reserve  reserve profits  reserves interests equity
RA  ROEE RIRE BRERE E0E0 RESH FRRER ERLE
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

THT TEL BT TET TEL BT TEL THT
(Note 24) (Note)
(FffzE24) (FsE)
Balance at RZT—TFMA—H
Tst April 2010 2 20,000 16,706 800 2,438 123,101 143,045 18,537 181,582

Total comprehensive FREERALE

income for the year - - - 1,421 11,591 13,012 4,460 17472
Dividends paid to BIRT IR R

non-controlling interests 7% & - - - - - - (2,999) (2,999)
Acquisition of B an

non-controlling interests ~ (Ff{zX28)

(Note 28) - - - - (438) (438) 438 -
Dividends of the Company: AR FIRRE. -
2010 final dividend “T-TERHKRE = = = = (2,000) (2,000) = (2,000)
2011 interim dividend —Z——FhHkRE - = = = (3,000) (3,000) - (3,000)

(5,438) (5,438) 2,561) (7,999)

Balance at R=B-—-%
31st March 2011 ZA=t+—-RAz&s 20,000 16,706 800 3,809 129,254 150,619 20,436 191,055
Representing: HER
2011 final dividend —T—FRERE 4,000
QOthers Hi 125,254

129,254

Note:  Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary Mt @ IRAFREBIDEARR S BT EBRRZAEE @ H

shares issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share premium BRER=ZZTZT—FWA+/\BETEARR
of subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization IR1DMERS 2 M B A RIARAS 1N L AR (5 )6 (8 2 48N
which took place on 18th April 2001. ME < HAERE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
maBlemaR

For the year ended 31st March 2011 #% & ——4=H = —H L4

2011
—E——F

HK$'000
TET

Cash flows from operating activities REEBELCRLTE
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations &4 %58 &E 4 (EhA)

ZIREFHE 26 14,968 (6,843)
Overseas income tax paid BB INTISRL (2,801) (2,270)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNEH (572) (226)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating 48 &z (BF)
activities <Be¥F® 1155 (9339
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELEZHERE
Interest received 2HFILE 461 395
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ﬁ%“ﬁ%% - B MR 14 (1,428) (1,059)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WEKEE
plant and equipment Fr1S5K18 1 42
(Advance to)/repayment from an associate iihﬁ)/{g;@
BN wzﬁ (6) 232
Net cash used in investing activities rEIDBAscReFE (896) 77777777777777 (390)
Cash flows from financing activities FEIBELCHESFE
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U BB FEIE AR fE 2 28 - -
Interest paid ERFE (1,200) (1,018)
Dividends paid to the Company's Eiﬁ%ﬂiﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁz
shareholders 1% & (5,000) (3,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests JE%%H et 2
s (2,949) (1,143)
Repayments of short-term bank loans g,@ﬂﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂéﬁk (242,343) (133,586)
Proceeds from short-term bank loans EERITE R ATE A 229,620 159,186
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEH(BR) B
financing activities ne¥sw (1,872 20,439
Net (decrease)/increase incashand BE2RELZEWOEL)
cash equivalents BINFEA (11,173) 10,710
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F7HRE RRLEEY
of the year 52,268 35,185
Exchange gains on cash and bank balances 84 R SR1T456R 2 B 3 U8 1,318 6,373
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZESREESZEY
of the year 42,413 52,268
Analysis of balances of cash and Re RN EEMERDT
cash equivalents:
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFEEBR S 39,009 46,170
Short-term bank deposits RHISRITIE K 3,404 6,098
42,413 52,268
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General Information

Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the trading
and distribution of electronic parts, components and equipment and
computer products and accessories.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda
as an exempted company under the Companies Act of Bermuda. The
addresses of its registered office and principal place of business are
set out in the Company’s annual report.

The Company's shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7th May 2001.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorized for issue by the Company's board of directors (the “Board”)
on 24th June 2011.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new standards and amendments to standards are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning 1st April
2010.

HKFRS 3 (revised), “Business combinations”, and consequential
amendments to HKAS 27, “Consolidated and separate financial
statements”, HKAS 28, “Investments in associates”, and HKAS 31,
“Interests in joint ventures”, are effective prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1st
July 2009.

The revised standard continues to apply the acquisition method to
business combinations but with some significant changes compared
with HKFRS 3. For example, all payments to purchase a business
are recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent
payments classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. There is a choice
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets. All
acquisition-related costs are expensed.

HKAS 27 (revised) requires the effects of all transactions with non-
controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is no change
in control and these transactions will no longer result in goodwill or
gains and losses. The standard also specifies the accounting when
control is lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is re-measured to
fair value, and a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

HKAS 1 (amendment), “Presentation of financial statements”. The
amendment clarifies that the potential settlement of a liability by the
issue of equity is not relevant to its classification as current or non
current. By amending the definition of current liability, the amendment
permits a liability to be classified as non-current (provided that the
entity has an unconditional right to defer settlement by transfer of
cash or other assets for at least 12 months after the accounting
period) notwithstanding the fact that the entity could be required by
the counterparty to settle in shares at any time. The amendment has
no material impact on the Group’s or Company'’s financial statements.
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(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

HKAS 36 (amendment), “Impairment of assets”, effective 1st January
2010. The amendment clarifies that the largest cash-generating
unit (or group of units) to which goodwill should be allocated for the
purposes of impairment testing is an operating segment, as defined
by paragraph 5 of HKFRS 8, “Operating segments” (that is, before the
aggregation of segments with similar economic characteristics). The
amendment has no material impact on the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements.

New and amended standards, and interpretations mandatory for
the first time for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010 but
not currently relevant to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)

HKAS 17 (amendment), “Leases”, deletes specific guidance regarding
classification of leases of land, so as to eliminate inconsistency with
the general guidance on lease classification. As a result, leases of
land should be classified as either finance or operating lease using
the general principles of HKAS 17, i.e. whether the lease transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset to the lessee.

HKAS 17 (amendment) has been applied retrospectively for annual
periods beginning 1st April 2010 in accordance with the effective
date and transitional provisions of the amendment. The Group has
reassessed the classification of unexpired leasehold land and land
use rights as at 1st April 2010 on the basis of information existing
at the inception of those leases, and recognized the leasehold land
in Hong Kong as finance lease retrospectively. As a result of the
reassessment, the Group has reclassified its leasehold land from
operating lease to finance lease. The land interest of the Group that
is held for own use is accounted for as property, plant and equipment
and is depreciated from the land interest available for its intended
use over the shorter of the useful live of the asset and the lease term.
The application of HKAS 17 (amendment) has had no material impact
on the Group's or Company'’s financial statements for the current and
prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

New and amended standards, and interpretations mandatory for
the first time for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010 but
not currently relevant to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events) (continued)

HK(IFRIC) 17, “Distribution of non-cash assets to owners”, effective
on or after 1st July 2009. The interpretation was published in
November 2008. This interpretation provides guidance on accounting
for arrangements whereby an entity distributes non-cash assets to
shareholders either as a distribution of reserves or as dividends.
HKFRS 5 has also been amended to require that assets are classified
as held for distribution only when they are available for distribution in
their present condition and the distribution is highly probable.

HK(IFRIC) 18, "Transfers of assets from customers”, effective
for transfer of assets received on or after 1st July 2009. This
interpretation clarifies the requirements of IFRSs for agreements in
which an entity receives from a customer an item of property, plant
and equipment that the entity must then use either to connect the
customer to a network or to provide the customer with ongoing access
to a supply of goods or services (such as a supply of electricity, gas
or water). In some cases, the entity receives cash from a customer
that must be used only to acquire or construct the item of property,
plant, and equipment in order to connect the customer to a network
or provide the customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or
services (or to do both).

HK(IFRIC) 9, “Reassessment of embedded derivatives and HKAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement”, effective 1st
July 2009. This amendment to HK(IFRIC) 9 requires an entity to assess
whether an embedded derivative should be separated from a host
contract when the entity reclassifies a hybrid financial asset out of
the “fair value through profit or loss” category. This assessment is to
be made based on circumstances that existed on the later of the date
the entity first became a party to the contract and the date of any
contract amendments that significantly change the cash flows of the
contract. If the entity is unable to make this assessment, the hybrid
instrument must remains classified as at fair value through profit or
loss in its entirety.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(b) New and amended standards, and interpretations mandatory for

the first time for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010 but
not currently relevant to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events) (continued)

HK(IFRIC) 16, “Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation”
effective 1st July 2009. This amendment states that, in a hedge of a
net investment in a foreign operation, qualifying hedging instruments
may be held by any entity or entities within the Group, including the
foreign operation itself, as long as the designation, documentation
and effectiveness requirements of HKAS 39 that relate to a net
investment hedge are satisfied. In particular, the Group should clearly
document its hedging strategy because of the possibility of different
designations at different levels of the Group.

HKAS 38 (amendment), “Intangible assets”, effective 1st April 2010.
The amendment clarifies guidance in measuring the fair value of
an intangible asset acquired in a business combination and permits
the grouping of intangible assets as a single asset if each asset has
similar useful economic lives.

HKFRS 2 (amendments), “Group cash-settled share-based payment
transactions”, effective form 1st January 2010. In addition to
incorporating HK(IFRIC) 8, “Scope of HKFRS 2", and HK(IFRIC) 11,
“HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share transactions”, the amendments
expand on the guidance in HK(IFRIC) 11 to address the classification
of group arrangements that were not covered by that interpretation.

HKFRS 5 (amendment), “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations”. The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 5
specifies the disclosures required in respect of non-current assets (or
disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued operations.
[t also clarifies that the general requirement of HKAS 1 still apply, in
particular paragraph 15 (to achieve a fair presentation) and paragraph
125 (sources of estimation uncertainty) of HKAS 1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

New standards, amendments and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010
and have not been early adopted

The Group's and parent entity's assessment of the impact of these
new standards and interpretations is set out below.

HK — Int 5, “Presentation of financial statements — classification by
the borrower of a term loan that contains a repayment on demand
clause”. The amendment clarifies that term loans that include a
clause that gives the lender the conditional right to call the loans at
any time (‘repayment on demand clause’) should be classified by the
borrower as current liabilities. The Group has applied HK — Int 5 for
the first time in the current year. HK — Int 5 requires retrospective
application. The application of HK — Int 5 has had no material impact
on the amounts reported for the current and prior years.

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, effective for annual period
starting from 1st April 2013. HKFRS 9 improves the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities compared
with the requirements of HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, all financial
assets are to be classified on the basis of the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Most of the requirements in
HKAS 39 for classification and measurement of financial liabilities
were carried forward unchanged to HKFRS 9. The Group will apply
HKFRS 9 from 1st April 2013. It is not expected to have any impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Revised HKAS 24 (revised), “Related party disclosures”, issued in
November 2009. It supersedes HKAS 24, “Related party disclosures”,
issued in 2003. HKAS 24 (revised) is mandatory for periods beginning
on or after 1st January 2011. Earlier application, in whole or in part, is
permitted.

The revised standard clarifies and simplifies the definition of a related
party and removes the requirement for government-related entities
to disclose details of all transactions with the government and
other government-related entities. The Group will apply the revised
standard from 1st April 2011. When the revised standard is applied,
the group and the parent will need to disclose any transactions
between its subsidiaries and its associates. The Group is currently
putting systems in place to capture the necessary information. It is,
therefore, not possible at this stage to disclose the impact, if any, of
the revised standard on the related party disclosures.
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2.1
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

New standards, amendments and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010
and have not been early adopted (continued)

“Classification of rights issues” (amendment to HKAS 32), issued in
October 2009. The amendment applies to annual periods beginning
on or after 1st February 2010. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment addresses the accounting for rights issues that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
issuer. Provided certain conditions are met, such rights issues are now
classified as equity regardless of the currency in which the exercise
price is denominated. Previously, these issues had to be accounted
for as derivative liabilities. The amendment applies retrospectively in
accordance with HKAS 8 “Accounting policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors”. The Group will apply the amended standard
from 1st April 2011.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19, “Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
instruments”, effective 1st July 2010. The interpretation clarifies the
accounting by an entity when the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and result in the entity issuing equity instruments to a
creditor of the entity to extinguish all or part of the financial liability
(debt for equity swap). It requires a gain or loss to be recognized
in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the
equity instruments issued. If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity instruments should
be measured to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The Group will apply the interpretation from 1st April
2011, 1t is not expected to have any impact on the Group or the
Company's financial statements.

Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement’ (amendments
to HK(IFRIC) — Int 14). The amendments correct an unintended
consequence of HK (IFRIC) — Int 14, "HKAS 19 — The limit on a
defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their
interaction”. Without the amendments, entities are not permitted
to recognise as an asset some voluntary prepayments for minimum
funding contributions. This was not intended when HK (IFRIC) — Int
14 was issued, and the amendments correct this. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning 1st January 2011. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments should be applied
retrospectively to the earliest comparative period presented. The
group will apply these amendments for the financial reporting period
commencing on 1st April 2011.

In addition, HKICPA has published a number of amendments for the
existing standards under its annual improvements project.

These amendments are expected to have no material impact to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with
the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognized at cost. The Group's investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
impairment loss.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognized in other comprehensive income. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

2.2
(b)

(c)

otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FESHBEERHBEw)

REEEE)

B R B BT RS
AEBMIFERERET IR HRIERR
AEERSEBAZRZREE - HRAE
E SRR - P EMRERKE
MEBARZEEHERTEMRBERIZE
BN - SR AR ERETT
& P A R S B IR T B RO AR

AEBREENREREATENE - B
ZEMREES  WAFEEHGE A
PARREEZ B R iR - LERARRD
VEH@‘?%”& CABRARRERMEECRE
- EATERVIFREE - M5 5%
FIRNE2ElafER Rz ERAEM T
MEeBRENAEECERHERMEE
SFBEZTAAR - WAIREERTATER
fEENEER 2 SREM D REREES

TR PABSE & X B 2 B RERE R R B IR B
EW N7 b E’\Eﬂiﬁ”ﬂlﬁ?’tﬁﬁ”&
ZEHERRELLIEFRSEE
403 A

B

—~
~

o

%
q

AT
BE NG RMBAREREERATENE
EIEHECER  BAEREZSIAE20%
EE0% 2B o REEE N E 2B A
HEEDEVIZ R ANERALR - AEER
BMEANBZRERERBRATHERAGE
(FNBR T RETRERE)

AEBRAGBE AR ZWBRBENES
EEHPRERER  MEHRERFHEED
ARNEM 2 EK SR - RFHKRBERED
RIBREREERAE - EAKEENL R
M’“TZES?@*H%T&E&BEEAEZ B
A A2 #Eah (B4 A EL A 4 1 K
) ARETSE—SHEABRE - EX
KB ERRZE L DR AEEB KK
HRIRRSN

Mobicon Group Limited | Annual Report 2010/2011



2.2
(c)

23

ERAEEERAF | —B—F /"B —FFR§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Associates (continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associates.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Changes in accounting policy

The Group has changed its accounting policy for transactions with
non-controlling interests and the accounting for loss of control or
significant influence from 1st April 2010 when revised HKAS 27,
“Consolidated and separate financial statements”, became effective.
The revision to HKAS 27 contained consequential amendments to
HKAS 28, “Investments in associates”, and HKAS 31, “Interests in
joint ventures”.

Previously transactions with non-controlling interests were treated as
transactions with parties external to the Group. Disposals therefore
resulted in gains or losses in profit or loss and purchases resulted
in the recognition of goodwill. On disposal or partial disposal, a
proportionate interest in reserves attributable to the subsidiary was
reclassified to profit or loss or directly to retained earnings.

Previously, when the group ceased to have control or significant
influence over an entity, the carrying amount of the investments at the
date control or significant influence became its cost for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interests as associates,
jointly controlled entity or financial assets.

The Group has applied the new policy prospectively to transactions
occurring on or after 1st April 2010. As a consequence, no adjustments
were necessary to any of the amounts previously recognized in the
financial statements.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.
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2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FESHHBEHME =)
(continued)

2.4  Foreign currency translation 24 NERBRE

(a)  Functional and presentation currency (a)  DEERZ#HEH
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's REBETSER WS HREMYIEBY
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic KAEHEREEMENEERERER
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency’). RAE.(TThae &% ) Rt B BAL - &7a
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK dollars WBEMERABITER - MATRARRRZ
(HK$), which is the company's functional and the Group's presentation BB RAEE 2HE -
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances (b) X5 RAizer

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that related to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within “finance costs”. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “general and
administrative expenses”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortized cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in amortized cost are
recognized in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as available for sale, are included in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

U assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

° income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the rate
on the dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of
the net investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liahilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold properties 60 years
Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in other

reserves are transferred to retained earnings.

2.6  Intangible assets
(a)  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in “intangible assets”.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the

carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose identified

according to operating segment.

(b) Distribution rights
Expenditures on rights acquired for manufacturing and distribution of
certain integrated circuit (“IC”) products are recognized as an asset
and amortized on a straight-line basis over 4 years to reflect the
pattern in which the related economic benefits are recognized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates
and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example, goodwill or
intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to amortization
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available
for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade
receivables”, “other receivables”, “amount due from an associate”,
and “cash and bank balances” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.
(continued)
2.8  Financial assets (continued)
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the reporting date.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
on the trade-date (the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset). Investments are initially recognized at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the statement of comprehensive income.
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “other
gains and losses” in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognized
in the statement of comprehensive income as part of other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available for sale are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in equity are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as “net gains and losses from equity on disposal/impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of other
income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statements of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective
evidence of an impairment loss include:

° Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

o A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

° The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the

borrower's financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

o It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

° The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or
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2.10
(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

o Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers
in the portfolio;

(i) national or local economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on the assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If a loan or held—
to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the criteria
refer to (a) above. In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss —
is removed from equity and recognized in the separate statement of
comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognized in the separate
statement of comprehensive income on equity instruments are not
reversed through the separate statement of comprehensive income. If,
in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized
in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the separate
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables is described in note
212.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or associates
is required upon receiving dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
or associate in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements
of the investee's net assets including goodwill.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost
of finished goods comprises direct costs. It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses. Costs
of inventories include the transfer from equity of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges purchases of raw materials.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-

current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

method, less provision for impairment.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term bank deposits with original maturities of three

months or less.

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the

proceeds.

2.15 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortized cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designed
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognized initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of:
(i) the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount
initially recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization
recognized in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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2.18

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax
is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the
countries where the company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans, the assets
of which are generally held in independently administered funds. The
Group's contributions to the defined contribution retirement schemes
are expensed as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognized until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to become exercisable.
At the end of each reporting date, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to become exercisable.
It recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognized as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be
settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when they are settled.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and
legal claims are recognized when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown, net of returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales with the Group.

The Group recognized revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met each of
the Group's activities on the following basis:

(a) Revenue from the sales of goods is recognized on the transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered to customers and
title has passed.

(b) Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognized using the original
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) Service income, management fee and commission income are
recognized when the services are rendered.

Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as
a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders.

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department
(group treasury) under policies approved by the Board. Group treasury
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation
with the Group's operating units. The Board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

2.

2.21

2.22

2.23

ok o B A P

FTESHBEERHBEw)

L6 EAC )
(c) RBEA - ERERAERARER
RIS RER

REHENERFERAN)
RGEAREZ @A R & EHRE L HEA
REZHBL - BHAKERL - RELE
Bz B2 (EHEREHEAKRZ
EAERR)  REFSOENEEHRNELR
AEmRERHR

R E 7k

AR B BRRIEH I BLE 2 IRR AR AR
RAEREHMEARBETBERRER R
BfE-

B 75 [ By B B

B m kR E &
AEBEBMESEYFRE : TI5RR
(BEIIMNERR - ATFENERER - B
REMEERLEERR) EERER L
MBELRER - AEBEERREIETE
SHRRERTIS 2 TRETEAEE R BURE
EEAEEHFRRBEDFIFE -

B B T2 o P R EE TS AP (SR B EE S B ) AR 1%
EFEIEZBERETT - ARBEEK PR
AEBEESEMURERENE - UFEH - 5HE
LR EER - EERRHEERRE
B2 EERAARRER T BB E K
® - PlsSMNER R - MERER - FRE

B ERTESRIARKTESRTA
ARERGFREERERE -




—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.1
(a)
(i)

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China, South
Africa, Malaysia ,Singapore and Thailand and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to United States dollars (“USD”) and Australian dollars
("AUD"). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations.

The directors of the Company consider that the foreign exchange risk
is not significant and the Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange risk exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the reporting date
to a reasonably possible change in the USD and AUD exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before
income tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to significant price risks during the year
ended 31st March 2011.

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its interest-bearing bank borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk. Details of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings have been
disclosed in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policies.
However, management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before income tax (through the impact
on floating rate borrowings) and the Group's equity.
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3.1
(b)

(c)

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets periodically
to ensure that potential credit risk of the counterparty is managed at
an early stage and sufficient provision is made for possible defaults.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The credit
risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise amount due
from an associate, cash and bank balances, and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

At 31st March 2011, the Group had several short-term bank loans
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$53,382,000 (2010:
HK$66,105,000).

3.
31

(b)

(c)

o the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(ZZ—=4F : 66,105,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial Risk Management (continved)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, was

ok o B A P

3. BKERREREse

3.1 HBEBEZEE)

(c) ABESEEE)
REESREERESE B RRA YRR
Y BRI T -

as follows:
More than
On demand 1 year but
or within less than
1year 5 years Total
BRERDS BR—F
R—FEREZR BLREF &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FAT
2011 —E——F
Trade payables BB 5 43,920 - 43,920
Other payables Hofh 5 5008 24,865 - 24,865
Short-term bank loans RERRITE R 53,640 - 53,640
2010 —E-TF
Trade payables B E SR 49,831 - 49,831
Other payables HAb T FRIA 17,544 = 17,544
Short-term bank loans EHISRITER 66,105 - 66,105

3.2  Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio

is calculated as net borrowings divided by total equity. Net borrowing
is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
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33

Financial Risk Management (continued) 3.
Capital risk management (continued) 32
The gearing ratios at 31st March 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

BEERER s
BRABEE Z)
RZB——FR=-F-FTF=A=1+—H
CEEABLERNT :

2011 2010

—E——F —EF-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET

Total borrowings BEEEE 53,382 66,105

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B HEERBRSZEY (42,413) (52,268)

Net borrowings BEFE 10,969 13,837

Total equity HEmBRE 191,055 181,582

Gearing ratio BEARBEX 6% 8%
Fair value estimation 3.3 DFEMHE

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable input) (level 3).

As at 31st March 2011, the Group did not have any assets and
liabilities that are measured at the above fair value measurements
hierarchy.

TRBEEREDTARFENIRZ £ 8/
TH - ZEFEHREWT ¢

. HREEXREEERMSZRE
(RIGHEE) (F—M) -

. BRE—RBIEZREIN  AJHE
(BRiZfE) s B (AR ERITE)
BRmErEERAERAEB(E
) e

. WIKEBEME TS8R B E
FBEEABREBRMAEHA
B(E=) -

RZE——F=A=+—H FAEETE
HAEERE B D AT EFERRIGF

=
= °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial Risk Management (continved) 3.
3.4  Financial instruments by category 3.4
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments at the reporting date are as follows:

ok o B A P

R ERE 2

£ET B85
SeMIAEANBEEHEEEN
T :

2011 2010
—g——fF —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Financial assets SRIEE
Loans and receivables: B EWRIE
— Amount due from an associate — fEUr—RIEE A A FR0E 809 803
— Trade receivables — WS SRR 1,152 88,716
— Other receivables — H i IR 6,637 6.379
— Cash and bank balances — B RIBITRE 42,413 52,268
Financial liabilities TRIEE
Amortized costs: TRBREHR A -
—Trade payables — B SRR 43,920 49,831
— QOther payables — H i FER 3R 24,865 17,544
— Short-term bank loans —SEHRITE R 53,382 66,105

4.  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 4.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a) Net realizable value of inventories (a)

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer demand and
competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates at each
reporting date.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
(continued)
Estimated recoverability of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on ongoing assessment of
the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based on
the credit history of its customers and other debtors and current
market conditions, and requires the use of judgments and estimates.
Management reassesses the provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables at each reporting date.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions
including Hong Kong, Mainland China, South Africa, Malaysia,
Singapore and Thailand. Significant judgment is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income taxes. There
are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

(b

©

e Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue and Segment Information
Revenue recognized during the year is as follows:

ok o B A P

WK o BE R
PR Z WG ¢

Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Revenue &
Sales of electronic components, automation SEET oL - BB LAt
parts and equipment BT 574,858 559,254
Sales of computer products and mobile 5 B o S FHEAC 1 DA K2
accessories and service income RRFSUA 164,974 157,943
739,832 717,197

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”). The
Executive Directors have reviewed the Group's internal reports in
order to assess the performance and allocate resources; they have
also determined the operating segments based on these reports. The
Executive Directors have further considered the business from product
perspective and have assessed the performance of two main business
segments: (i) Electronic Trading Business — Distribution of electronic
components, automation parts and equipment; and (ii) Computer
Business — Retail sales of computer products and mobile accessories,
distribution of computer products and provision of IT outsourcing and
solution services.

The Executive Directors have assessed the performance of the
operating segments based on segment results before corporate
expenses, interest expenses and share of losses of associates.
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5. Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5. WmkosEER®
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2011 are as HE_T——FZA=-+—HILFENE
follows: REWNT
Electronic
Trading
Business Computer
EFEE Business Unallocated Group
E S EFES0S ROHE AEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FHET FTHET
Revenue & 574,858 164,974 - 739,832
Segment results ok e 20,433 (1,008) 801 20,226
Interest expenses FMBEFHX - - (1,200) (1,200)
Share of losses of associates i NG St (6) (56) - (62)
Profit before income tax BRETER AER 18,964
Income tax expense (Note 9) Fris®if s (Ff:E9) (4,290)
Profit for the year FRER 14,674
Other segment items included Hiph ALAEE
in the consolidated statement of Wk HEIER
comprehensive income W
are as follows:
Depreciation e 1,636 352 = 1,988
Provision for impairment of EUE S ERFURBE B R
trade receivables 2,742 197 = 2,939
Provision for TR B
slow-moving inventories 3,068 84 - 3,152
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

S.

The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2010 are as

follows:

Electronic
Trading
Business
BETEE
=15
HK$'000
FAT

ok o B A P

KRk oEER 2
HE_ZT-—ZTFE=A=+—HItEENHE
ES SN

Computer
Business
EEES
HK$'000
FAT

Unallocated
ROk
HK$'000
FAT

Group
REE
HK$'000
FHET

Revenue Uz 559,254 157,943 - 717,197
Segment results DIRELE 11,434 (2,985) (553) 7.896
Interest expenses F B - - (1,018) (1,018)
Share of loss of an associate FEAG —[EEs & A B eS8 - (51) - (51)
Profit before income tax BR FR S8R SR 6.827
Income tax expense (Note 9) FriS Rt 5 s (Ffi3E9) (3,331)
Profit for the year FREFR 3,496
Other segment items included EmyAREEE

in the consolidated statement of WEHRZHEEER

comprehensive income W

are as follows:
Depreciation e 2,544 328 — 2,872
Provision for impairment EYE SR FUR BB

of trade receivables 411 14 - 4,125
Provision for slow-moving T B RHE

inventories 1,874 63 - 1,937

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, inventories, trade and other receivables, and cash
and bank balances. Unallocated assets comprise income tax assets

and cash and bank balances.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated
liabilities comprise items such as other payables, taxation and short-

term bank loans.

Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property, plant
and equipment (Note 14) and intangible assets (Note 15).
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5. Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5. WmkosEER®

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2011 and R-E——F=ZA=+—HZHEEEN
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as follows: BEAREEZHLEFEZABIERBDE
EQT
Electronic
Trading
Business Computer

EFEE Business Unallocated Group
E S B ROE rEE
CY] HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FTET FTHET
Assets BE 284,584 28,215 2,555 315,354
Associates iEdl/NC] 622 391 - 1,013
Total assets EERE 285,206 28,606 2,555 316,367
Liabilities afE 61,212 7,845 56,255 125,312
Additions to non-current assets NBEIEREEE 1,044 384 - 1,428
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2010 and RZE—ZTF=ZRA=+—HZ27HEER
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as follows: BEARBEZBIEFEZABERDE

Electronic
Trading
Business Computer
BFEE Business  Unallocated Group
s BIEET RO REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAET AT

Assets BE 281,766 32,751 2,827 317,344
Associate i /NG - 441 - 441
Total assets EEAE 281,766 33,192 2,827 317,785
Liabilities =L 61,448 5,864 68,891 136,203
Additions to non-current assets NEIERBEE 587 472 - 1,059
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
The Group's revenue is generated mainly within Hong Kong, Asia
Pacific, South Africa and Europe.

S.

ok o B A P

WERDEER 2
AEEYKRTERNES TAB - @
BEUMEE -

2011 2010
—=E——fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Revenue (country of domicile) Wik (FEMEIR)

Hong Kong Ei8 427,478 478,216
Asia Pacific By N 225,469 162,225
South Africa [=ES 61,098 49,763
Europe BN 10,059 14,315
Other countries B RETES 15,728 12,678
739,832 717,197

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer is Wiz P ERR SR

located.

2011 2010
—2——F —E-TE

HKS 000 HK$ 000
FH T

Total assets
Hong Kong
Asia Pacific
South Africa

Associates (Note 17)
Unallocated assets

BERE
5
DA
B

E YN Al
AROBEE

212,492 226,641
58,732 53,491
41,575 34,385

312,799 314,517

1,013 Ly
2,555 2,827
316,367 317,785

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located.
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5. Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5. WaEkosEER#®

2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE
Hong Kong B 1,001 895
Asia Pacific EEyN 284 75
South Africa [FEEL 143 89
1,428 1,059
Additions to non-current assets is allocated based on where the assets RNEIEMBEEREEMTHOI
are located.
The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments URES BRREKEIIFEZIIERBDEE
located in Hong Kong, Asia Pacific and South Africa are approximately BE(MmIELFEITER) 5 R A%1,100,000
HK$1,100,000, HK$11,741,000 and HK$763,000 respectively. (2010: 7 7T~ 11,741,000 7% JT K 763,000 /& T ©
approximately HK$1,169,000, HK$10,482,000 and HK$791,000 (ZZ—ZF : 551 A%91,169,0007% 7T *
respectively). 10,482,00078 7T 52 791,000/ 7T) ©
Information about major customers EREIEEFZER
No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue for the BE T ——F R ZTF=-F=+—
years ended 31st March 2011 and 2010. HIEFE - #EE P AR L EE10%3k A

Fo
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6.  Other Income 6. HflgA
Group
2011 2010
—EB——fF —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Management fee from an associate (Note 30(a)) KB —fELA AR BB E
(F45E30(a)) 96 84
Management fee from third parties REF=ZH2EERE 1,374 1,387
Service fee from an associate (Note 30(a)) e —HBE AR 2 RIEE
(BEE30(a)) 12 12
Commission income THEAL N 35 9
Interest income from bank deposits SRITF R BMA M2 347
Interest income from an associate TE—REEE AR ZFEWA
(Note 30(a)) (Fft3E30(a)) 49 48
Other income Hitp e A 456 704
2,434 2,591
7.  Expenses by Nature 7. SEEA
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Costs of inventories expensed FERAFL 615,724 603,618
Employee benefit expense (Note 13) REBFIFL (FIzE13) 62,976 63,058
Depreciation of owned property, BEVH  WEREEBITE
plant and equipment 1,988 2,872
Provision for impairment of trade receivables FEUE 5 BRFUBERE(EFTA
(included in general and administrative expenses) —fERITIHEIEER) 2,939 4,125
Provision for slow-moving inventories (included in 577 & #4E (2 st ASHERAN)
cost of sales) 3,152 1,937
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented THRAYMEZ LB ES
premises 12,378 11,902
Auditors’ remuneration %A S 950 950
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HE¥% - FE LR EWRZE (63) (35)
Net foreign exchange gains bE 5 ) F 58 (1,883) (2,512)

BROEEERAT | —8—% /2 ——FF%




—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok o B B i M

8. Finance Costs 8. EERAK

2011 2010
—g——%  -T-TF

HK$'000 HK$000
FET THET

Interest expense on short-term bank loans, wholly 7B R F R 2 EERE ERETT

repayable within five years BERZHBERX 1,200 1,018
9. Income Tax Expense 9. FMEHEX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010: BERMNEHBEFAREBELENRES
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or derived B2 ERT G - #2165%( — T —F
from Hong Kong for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been F 16.5%) 2 BLEEHE < BINGE T Z BIE
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates RENMGEERBUEN - UAREEEEE
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. BERERZHETH -
2011 2010
—F——F —E—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Current income tax BNERFT1S %1
— Hong Kong profits tax — EHFER 1,643 935
— Overseas taxation —BHNEIE 2,721 2,117
— (Over)/under provision in prior years —BEFE (BREEE),
BETRE (143) 313
Deferred income tax (Note 23) RIEFTS B (MI7E23) 69 (34)
Income tax expense FTiSFiR X 4,290 3,331

Mobicon Group Limited | Annual Report 2010/2011




10.

—-—-Illllllllllllllll

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Income Tax Expense (continued)

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax
rate as follows:

Profit before income tax R TS A0 AL )
Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits tax rate of
16.5% (2010: 16.5%)
FHEZBIA
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other countries
Tax losses of subsidiaries not recognized
Utilization of previously unrecognized tax losses
(Over)/under provision in prior years
Others

TRBE 8

HAl

Income tax expense FTiSHi 2

BEEBT S E16.5%
(ZZ—Z4F 1 165%)

i AR FERR 2 P 2 R TR 1R
B SC AT R R TR 2 TR A
BEFEGEERE) BETR

ok o B A P

PR e
REBRFTER AR BIEREAES
FSRR R 2 R BETR - 8540
T :

REMBEREE ZHBATF]

2011 2010
—g——%  —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi# FHIT
18,964 6,827
3129 1,126

979 91

189 595

(221) (34)
(143) 313

357 370

4,290 3,331

As the Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda, it
is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until 2016.

Mobicon Electronic Trading (Shenzhen) Limited (“MET"), being a
foreign investment enterprise established in the free trade zone of
Futian, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), and
with a financial year end date falling on 31st December, is subject to
PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 25%. No provision for PRC
enterprise income tax has been made as MET is still in a tax loss
position. MET is entitled to exemption from PRC enterprise income
tax for the first two profitable years commencing from the year ended
31st December 2008 and a 50% reduction from normal PRC enterprise
income tax for the three years following.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
approximately HK$24,000 (2010: HK$19,000).
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11. Earnings Per Share
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31st
March 2011 is based on the Group's profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately HK$11,591,000 (2010:
HK$1,843,000) and on the weighted average number of 200,000,000
(2010: 200,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

There is no diluted earnings per share since the Company has no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31st
March 2011 and 2010.

12. Dividends

Interim dividend paid of HK1.5 cents EIRFHAR S

11.

12.

BRER
BHE_T——F=A=1+—RHILFEZ
SRERBFDNERAR P ERITE AR
1EAREEHEF#11591,0008 T(ZE—F
F 01,843,000 0 ) RFADEHITERR
2 N4 5 $1200,000,0000% ( —Z—F 4 ¢
200,000,0003% )5t &

HRARARBE_Z——FR_Z-F
F=A=+—HIFEYEEMAELTE

SEREBDETEER - W ERGREE
R o

m

3=\

2011
—EB——F

2010
—E—FF
HK$'000
FAT

HKS$'000
FTHET

GRS BB 5B

(2010: HKO.5 cent) per ordinary share (ZZE—Z4F : 0.581l) 3,000 1,000
Proposed final dividend of HK2 cents PR R BRI BB I E @ AR 28

(2010: HK1 cent) per ordinary share (ZZ—FF - 178) 4,000 2,000

7,000 3,000

At a meeting held on 9th July 2010, the directors of the Company RZZE-—TFLANBRITZEEZL K

proposed a final dividend of HK1 cent per ordinary share in respect of ANAESEARNEBEEZE-_ZT—ZEF=A1

the year ended 31st March 2010. =+t RIEFERARESREBRIE
ily ©

At a meeting held on 24th June 2011, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary share in respect
of the year ended 31st March 2011. This proposed dividend is not
reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements, but will
be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the year ending
31st March 2012.

RZT——FAAZTHOARITZER
FARAEEERRNEBEE=S——F
A=+ —BIEFEZREREGRE B
BR27 (L o tEEERAL B T R I S0
WMERIEERMNKRE - 23 AEEC

——E A=+ BUFE BRI

Eo
A °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Employee Benefit Expense

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Pension costs — defined contribution plans
(Note a)

Provision for long-service payments

(PffaEa)
RERBERE

Total employee benefit expense (including

directors’ remuneration) EEME)

13.

L TEREMER
RIS — E R

EERENM @R (B

ok o B A P

EEEAFX
2011 2010
—E——5F ===
HK$'000 HK$000
TR THET
59,783 59,708
3137 3,333
56 17
62,976 63,058

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its employees
makes monthly contribution to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The employer’s and employees’ contribution is subject to a
cap of monthly earnings of HK$20,000.

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd., a 50.1% owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Malaysia to join
the Employee Provident Fund Scheme (“the EPF Scheme”). The
EPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Malaysia. Under the EPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme at 12% and
8%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Employee Provident Fund Act 1991, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant government agency
is responsible for the pension obligation payable to the retired
employees.

BROEEERAT | —8—% /2 ——FF%
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RS - EREKEE
AEBDRETBREELZHZ2EEHER
Besrd([aEestdl]) - eEsEaD
TREFEE - HBUETATE - RIE
BmEEREE ARENREREERBRE
SBREIEATRR T BNEDIZ R B WAL E A
&t B - BEREEBHRZEAK
A _EPBR&20,000 7T ©

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. /A& 4S 55 [
HAENN%ER B AR - HEABKRA
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ERAERRARSMREGERRERETR 2 E—
FEAE - ERBUNHKEZES RRENKES
THRIRE o
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Employee Benefit Expense (continued)

Pensions — defined contribution plans (continued)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, has arranged for its employees in Singapore to join the
Central Provident Fund Scheme (“the CPF Scheme”). The CPF Scheme
is a defined contribution scheme managed by the government of
Singapore. Under the CPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
make monthly contribution to the scheme at 16% and 20%,
respectively, of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Central
Provident Fund Act, and the Group has no further obligations for
the actual pension payments or post-retirement benefits beyond its
contributions. The relevant government agency is responsible for the
pension obligation payable to the retired employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China as determined by the relevant local governments,
which are defined contribution plans. The Group contributes
approximately 8% to 17% of the basic salaries of its employees
in Mainland China and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

Pursuant to the Labor Pension Act of Republic of China, the Group
contributes its employees in Taiwan of no less than 6% of its
employees monthly wages to the employee’s individual pension
account. The Group's contributions are expensed as incurred.

13.
(@

s to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EERABEXR @

Bk - EEMAREEE)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. & 7K & &
EMBAR HEAFNBEREER
$E £ B Central Provident Fund Scheme ( [ CPF
Scheme | ) ° CPF Scheme J3 i& 28 it Zi &t &1 -
RTINS B 32 o MR IR CPF Scheme * &
=+ X {& 8 78 1R # Central Provident Fund Act%>
B R B WA 2 16% K 20% 3% A A% T &l
B o BREFRAIN - REEWEA (] H
BERRARSNRSRKERNZE—FE
f - BABN#EABERRKNEE N
BIRE o

RIBHBEIRA FROIFTETER - AKE L
B B [ B R & R RET EEH 2 f#
KRB ARERBNERE - ZF:8ARE
BHHKETE - ARERTEANMESE
R EIEHHIB%ET RN o FREFHK
S AEEY BB R ERRKE K
SRR EEHZE—FEE - BREBR
REtEIRB BERRKEES T RAKE -

RBHERRZ S TRASED - AEE
RERBEZRBREAEBARKESRSIE
BT IRZEREEAFE6% K - K
KB HRTIREER Y
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13. Employee Benefit Expense (continued) 13. EEEFBEX®
(b)  Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments b) EEBREAEEEM
The remuneration of every director of the Company for the year ended BE-TZ——F-A=Z+—HILFEAR
31st March 2011 is set out below: AIREEZMEHIINT
Employer's
contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
and other scheme
benefits [ EFE LR
Name of director Fees E = : 1 srEfES 2 Total
EEME e R H R EEH a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTHEx FHEx FTET
Executive directors HITES
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, ) 4 ()
Measure (Note (i) - - - -
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BEEL T - 1,300 12 1,312
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HEELE - 845 12 857
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix SRR E - 845 12 857

Independent non-executive G EHITES

directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman 4t 4 80 - - 80
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung PEFEL 120 - - 120
Mr. Chow Shek Fai (Note (ii)) A5 A A (M RE() 80 - - 80

280 2,990 36 3,306

BROEEERAT | —8—% /2 ——FF%
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13. Employee Benefit Expense (continued) 13. EEBAEXZ®

(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (b)) EZEERSREEEME L)
(continued)
The remuneration of every director of the Company for the year ended BE-_Z-ZTF=-A=+—HILFEEAR
31st March 2010 is set out below: RIRESEZMEHIINT

Employer’s

contributions

Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
and other scheme

benefits M) E BE 3K
Name of director Fees 4 - 2Bh FTEIfER 2 Total
ESHA ok K EARF fEEHK =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHIT FHIT T

Executive directors HITES

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BEEL T - 1,200 12 1,212
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HERELE - 780 12 792
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix HERE A - 780 12 792

Independent non-executive B HEHITESE

directors

Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. ChapmanZt 4 80 = = 80

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung RIEFE+ 120 - - 120

Mr. Chow Shek Fai (Note (ii)) B85 #8 2 A (B EEG) 80 - - 80
280 2,760 36 3,076

Notes: F3E

(i) Appointed on 1st April 2011. (| R=ZE——FEOA—HEZE-

(ii) Passed away on 14th May 2011. [(R=F——FRA+HBEH -

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments FN - BESEHEXRERETAHE

during the year (2010: Nil). No incentive payment for joining the Group (ZE—ZF | - FA - BEESHE

or compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to any director NP EREEFRBEELSBEMARERR 2

during the year (2010: Nil). HESERMEE(CE—TE &) o
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13. Employee Benefit Expense (continued) 13. EEEFBEX®

(c)  Five highest paid individuals c) EEEREFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group FRN - AEBRAEERTALTZHR =5
for the year include three (2010: three) Executive Directors whose (ZE—ZTFE: =Z)BHTES ' KE2
emoluments are set out in Note 13(b) to the financial statements. The B <& 2 A BT IS R M 5E13(b) © F T T84
emoluments payable to the remaining individuals during the year are TZEATZHENAT
as follows:

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FAT
Basic salaries and allowances HEAFHE K2R, 2,205 1,934
Contributions to defined contribution scheme — EREME FRET 21 R 12 12
2,217 1,946
The emoluments fell within the following band: BN FATEE :

Number of employees
EEAH

2011 2010
=F——F —T-TF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7L 51,500,000 7T 1 1

2 2
During the year, no emoluments were paid to the above individual as FA - WER AT NBEERRS
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for 12 DA SR DR A A S5 [ BRp 7 SR ok A Bk
loss of office (2010: Nil). B(ZZ—=F &)

BROEEERAT | —8—% /2 ——FF%




At 1st April 2009
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2010
(Opening net book amount
Exchange differences
Additions

Disposals
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2010

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2011
(Opening net book amount
Exchange differences
Additions

Disposals
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2011

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

R-ZZAFNA-A
BEN
R E

REHE

BZE_Z-ZF
=ZA=t+—-HLEFE

FHIREFE

X =%

NE

HE

e

FRAREFE

R-B-2F
=A=+-B

p s

25HiTE

fREDHE

BE-E——-F
=A=1+—HLEFEE

FHEREFE

b L Z%E

NE

HE

e

FRRIREFE
pt SR
=A=t+-8
BZ
RihE

HREFE

Leasehold
properties

HEMF
HK$'000

TR

14.

Furniture
and fixtures
BRREE
HK$'000

S —
87T

Group

r5E
Office
equipment
WAZRE
HK$'000
FET

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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W% BERRE

Motor
CLITHES
RE
HK$'000
THT

Total
Ak
[=N-}

HK$'000
FisT

9,105 12,680 15,707 2,163 40,255
(227) (11,457) (13,089) (1,974)  (26,747)
8,878 1223 2,618 789 13,508
8,878 1223 2,618 789 13,508
182 93 m 130 1,116
- 513 546 - 1,059

- - (7) - (7)
(162) (845) (1,542) (323) (2,872)
9,498 984 1,726 596 12,804
9,910 11,831 16,225 3,099 41,065
(412) (10,847) (14,499) (2503)  (28,261)
9,498 984 1,726 596 12,804
9,498 984 1,726 596 12,804
1,053 56 33 28 1.170
= 577 781 70 1,428

- - (13) (1 (14)
(174) (661) (940) (213) (1,988)
10,377 956 1,587 480 13,400
11,019 12,454 16,865 3,280 43,618
(642) (11,498) (15,278) (2,800)  (30,218)
10,377 956 1,587 480 13,400
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continved) 14.

The leasehold properties are located outside Hong Kong and held
under a long-term lease.

At 31st March 2011, leasehold properties with an aggregate net book
amount of approximately HK$10,377,000 have been pledged to secure
certain banking facilities granted by a bank to a subsidiary amounting
to approximately HK$3,063,000 (2010: Nil) (Note 22).

15. Intangible Assets 15.

V¥ BERSZE
TEW LR NE S EINE R E RGO
ﬁo

R-B——E=ZA=+—H  KEFEE
A% 510,377,000 2 HEWEE BE—
M ER1THR T — R B 2 5] A 2473,063,000
BL(ZE—TF : BIZETRITHEZ
IR (HI5E22) ©

BVEE

Group
AEEH
Distribution

Goodwill
(GRS
HK$'000
THIT

Total
&t
HK$'000
BT

rights
7R
HK$'000
FAT

At 31st March 2010, R-ZB-ZEF=A=+—H "
1st April 2010 and “E-ZEFWNA-HR
31st March 2011 —E2——H=HA=+—H
Cost AR 732 4,836 5,568
Accumulated amortization and ST NRE
impairment (732) (4,836) (5,568)
Net book amount BR T RE — — _
16. Investments in Subsidiaries 16. RHBARZKRE
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a RHBARZERE

Company
ZA YN
2011

2010
—E—FF
HK$000
FET

S
HK$'000
FH

Unlisted investments, at cost FELHEE - R AE 67,297 67,297
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 16(b))  FEULHTE A T2 (HT5E16(b) 34,445 33,910
101,742 101,207

BROEEERAT | —8—% /2 ——FF%
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16.

(@

Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st March 2011, all of which are
held indirectly by the Company (except for Mobicon (BVI) Limited

which is held directly by the Company), are as follows:

APlus Computer
Holdings Limited

APlus 2 Computer Limited
RESHEREBRAT

A Power Limited
BEELTIRRERAR

APower Holdings Limited
REIREEBRAR

AESI (HK) Limited
f—F5(EE)
BRAF

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity
SEAAR L 3t B
EEBRER

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
EBELHS  ARRA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company
& BRAR

Hong Kong,
limited liability Company
EH  ARAA

Hong Kong,
limited liability Company
Ei - BRAR

Hong Kong,
limited liability company
Bt - BRAR

16.
(@

Principal activities and
place of operations
EEB

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBETREER

Trading anddistribution
of computer products
and mobile accessories
in Hong Kong
REBETERER
RF B EER D

Trading and distribution
of computer products
and mobile accessories
in Hong Kong
REBETENED
RF B EER D H

Trading and distribution
of computer products
and mobile accessories
in Hong Kong
REBETERER
RF M E RS

Provision of information
technology services
in Hong Kong
BB (B AR RHL PR

RMB AR ZEBE #)

KRB ARIZRE#E)
R-ZZE——F=R=+—H  ARQAFIME
B HE 2 B W E 2 & (B Mobicon (BVI)
Limited A AR B EEFBINFHBLT ¢

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
BRITRE,
HEMERFHE

Percentage
of equity
interest held
PRl
BEADE

800,000 ordinary shares 100%
of US$1 each

800, 000fk B AR EN (&
(B3l

1,000 ordinary shares 51%
of HK$1 each
1,0008% X E &
172 LBk

500,000 ordinary shares 100%
of HK$1 each

500,000 B AR E (&
BT EBR

500,000 ordinary shares 60%
of HK$1 each

5000008 SR TEE
BT BmR

1,000 ordinary shares 100%
of HK$1 each

1,000 EREE
BT BB
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16. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 16. RMIBARZIRE#)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a RPHBLARZREE)
Place of Particulars of Percentage
incorporation and Principal activities and issued share capital/ of equity
kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital interest held
kB AL 3tk B TEXBR BRITRAR ESIEN
HEERER EEE EMEARFFE BZADL
Arkia Advance Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of 1,000,000 ordinary shares of 70%
DERETHRAR limited liability company electronic parts, components ~ HK$1 each (Note (iv))
&5 BRAR and equipment in Hong Kong  1,000,0008% 5 f & (Pr&E(v))
REBETETEN BTz EER
T RESEEREDH
Conwise Power Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
EXEBRAR limited liability company electronic parts, components  of HK$1 each (Note (v))
£ ARAT and equipment in Hong Kong  1,000,0008% &% (& G
REBETETEN BTz EER
T RESEERDH
DV Power Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of 10,000 ordinary shares 50%
BERIZBERAT limited liability company electronic parts, components  of HK$1 each {Note (i)}
B BRRA and equipment in Hong Kong  10,0000% & AR (& (B (i)
REBETETSN BT EER
T RESEERDH
Langa Holdings Republic of South Africa, Investment holding 100 ordinary shares 51%
(Proprietary) Limited limited liability company in South Africa of ZAR1 each
BB - BRDA REIEETIRE R 100A AR E 1A
1EERR B R
Mantech Electronics Republic of South Africa, Trading and distribution of 100 ordinary shares 51%
(Proprigtary) Limited limited liability company electronic parts, components  of ZAR1 each

MM - BRAF

BROEEERAT | —8—% /2 ——FF%
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REB AR ZRE®)

16. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 16.

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a RPHBLARZREE)
Place of Particulars of Percentage
incorporation and Principal activities and issued share capital/ of equity
kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital interest held
R AR AL 3t B TEXBR ERITRE PR IR
HEERER EEE HEMEARFFE BEZADE
Maxfair Distribution Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution 100 ordinary shares 100%
BLRBRAT limited liability company of computer products of HK$1 each; (2010: 60%)
B ARATA and mobile accessories 1,000,000 non-voting (CZZF 60%)
in Hong Kong deferred shares
REBETERER of HK$1 each (Note (i)
NFHEHEERD 108G REENET
LiE
1,000,0008% &%
HEETZ
ERFRRITR
(F=E()
MCU Power Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
REBHBRDF limited liability company of electronic parts, of HK$1 each
EE  ARAQA components and equipment in 1,000,008 SR EE
Hong Kong BT LBk
REBETETEN
T REREERD
Milliard Devices Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution 1,000,000 ordinary shares 70%
EEIRTHER AR limited liability company of electronic parts, of HK$1 each
EH ARAA components and equipment in 1,000,008 SR EE
Hong Kong BT T
REBETETEN
T REREERD
Mobicon (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares 100%
limited liability company in Hong Kong of US$1 each
HERZHS  ARAR  REBETREER 10000 AR E{E
1= EER
Mobicon (Taiwan) Limited Republic of China, Trading and distribution 500,000 ordinary shares 100%
SEERBIAERAR limited liability company of electronic parts, of NT$10 each
RERE - BRAR components and equipment in 500, 0008 SFXE (&
Taiwan ez LAl

RABETETE -
T RAEEERS
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Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Mobicon Agent Limited
BERAREBRAR

Mobicon Electronic Trading
(Shenzhen) Limited (Note (iii)

ERAEFES
CARIN) A IR 2 =] (ki)

Mobicon Holdings Limited

ERUETEEBRAR

Mobicon International Limited

Mobicon Malaysia Limited

Mobicon-Mantech
Holdings Limited

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity
ST AR AL 1t 2
L EBRER

Hong Kong,
limited liability company
EE  ARLR

PRC, wholly-owned
foreign enterprise
R RIERE

Hong Kong,
limited liability company
EE - BRRA

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
RERIES  BRAR

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
EREXEES  ARAA

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
EREXES AR

BROEEERAT | —8—% /2 ——FF%
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RB AR Z2RE ®)
REBARZRE(F)

Particulars of Percentage
Principal activities and issued share capital/ of equity
place of operations registered capital interest held
TEXBR BRITRAR ESIEN
EEE AEMERFE BZADL
Trading and distribution 10,000 ordinary shares 100%
of electronic parts, of HK$1 each
components and equipment in 10,0008% SRR E(E
Hong Kong T LBk
EA%/%LTT E Eﬁ
THREREENR
Trading and distribution Registered capital 100%
of electronic parts, HK$2,000,000
components and equipment in £ & 2K
the PRC 2,000,000/ 7C
R B TEF T
THREREERS
Trading and distribution 10 ordinary shares 100%
of electronic parts, components ~ of HK$1 each
and equipment in Hong Kong 100 &R E{E
Eé%i%%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ a3 il
T REREEEDH
Investment holding 100 ordinary shares 100%
in Hong Kong of US$1 each
REBEITIREER 100 B R A (E
1T EER
Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100%
in Hong Kong of US$1
REBEITREER TREBEIETLZ
LAk
Investment holding 1,000 ordinary shares 51%
in Hong Kong of US$1 each
REBETRERR 10008 S AR El{E
1T ERR
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16. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 16. AMBARZIRE#)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a RPHBLARZREE)
Place of Particulars of Percentage
incorporation and Principal activities and issued share capital/ of equity
kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital interest held
SRR S 3t B TEXBR ERTRE PR IR 2
HEERER EEE HEMEARFFE BEZAD
Mobicon-Remote Republic of Singapore, Trading and distribution 300,000 ordinary shares 100%
Electronic Pte Ltd. limited liability company of electronic parts, components  of S§1 each
KL - BEAF and equipment in Singapore  300,0008% S IX &
RIIRETEFEM 1R IBR T BRI
T RESEEREDH
Mobicon-Remote Malaysia, Trading and distribution 1,000,000 ordinary shares 50.1%
Electronic Sdn. Bhd. limited liability company of electronic parts, components  of RM1 each
ERET - ARAT and equipment in Malaysia ~ 1,000,0008% SRR E(E
RERASETEFEN - [fkiwd3 ill
T RESEEREDH
Mobicon-Remote Electronics Thailand, Trading and distribution 30,000 ordinary shares 99.99%
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. limited liability company of electronic parts, components  of THB100 each
ZE - BRAA and equipment in Thailand 30,0008 & X E1{E
REETETEN 10058k 2 Bk
T REREERD
M-Tec Electronic Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution 100,000 ordinary shares 100%
SEETARBAT limited liability company of electronic parts, components  of HK$1 each
EH ARAA and equipment in Hong Kong 100,008 &A% E{&
REBETETEN BT BwR
T REREERD
Partners 2 Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 100 ordinary shares 100%
limited liability company in Hong Kong of US$1 each
HEELES  ARAA REBETREZR 1008 & AR 1A
1T EER
PC Master Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of 1,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 90%
MEEBERAR limited liability company computer products and mobile  each (Note (iv))
&% BRAT accessories in 10008 B E1E (G
Hong Kong 1B BB
REBETERER
RFHEHEERD
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16. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 16. RAMIBARZIRE#)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a RPHBLATRZREE)
Place of Particulars of Percentage
incorporation and Principal activities and issued share capital/ of equity
kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital interest held
AR R TEXBR BRITRE/ PR R
HEERER EEL EMEARFFE BZAD
Videocom Technology Hong Kong, Trading and distribution 2 ordinary shares 100%
(HK) Limited limited liability company of computer products of HK$1 each
TMEt(HE)BRAF B8 BRRA and mobile accessories WREREE
in Hong Kong 1B LR

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

NEBETERER

BFHEMHBEERDH

The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group. The shares
have no voting rights, are not entitled to dividend, and are not entitled to
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of HK$10 billion had been
distributed to the holders of ordinary shares.

The directors are of the view that the Group has control over the financial and
operating policies of DV Power Limited and accordingly it is accounted for as a
subsidiary.

The subsidiary has a financial year-end date falling on 31st December in
accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is not coterminous
with the Group. The consolidated financial statements of the Group were
prepared based on the financial statements of the subsidiary for the twelve
months ended 31st March 2011.

In the process of deregistration.

Deregistered on 24th June 2011.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time
during the year ended 31st March 2011 (2010: Nil).

(®)

Amounts due from subsidiaries
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and not repayable within one year.

BREEEARAT | —8—% /—F——FF§

b

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

ERERELER DI IEAEEBRE © %
FERMWEIETE - TEEZARE -
BRBERFEERZEEIMDIK « BRIE
10,000,000,000 L E £k T & @A H
j\ °

EEZRR AREREHRERTESR
RAR 2B R EERR - At - &R
AIRFEMB AT -

RIBEHEERE - ZMBARZH
BERZFERRT -_A=1—H &
AREEW A - NEE 245G M5
RVBEHBARHE T ——F=A
=t Bt @AM ERERREL

FREE AR o
KT ——4 X8 =+ B #EssEm -

REBE-_T——F=ZA=+—HLEFEREM
KR SHEBRARMEEAEBTZEEER
(S5m0

(b)

PEE Lt B 1 1 R RIR
RUHBATREABER - 28 A8
AR —FREE -
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17. Investments in Associates 17. REBEQATz2RE
(a) Investments in associates (a) REEQATZRE
Group
TEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Beginning of the year =) (362) (311)
Additions NE 630 -
Exchange differences PE N EE (2) -
Share of losses FE1E 18 (62) (51)
End of the year FR 204 (362)
Amount due from an associate (Note 17(b)) R —REH 2 A ) kT8 (B 5E17(b) 809 803
1,013 441
Details of the associates of the Group as at 31st March 2011, which REBR-_Z——F=A=+—HzZ¥L
are unlisted, are as follows: MR N FFIBIT

E
incorporation and

kind of legal entity
AR AL it B R
EEERER

Create Tech Software Hong Kong,
Systems Limited limited liability company
MEREE AR AR &S
BRAR
Mobicon Electronic Supplies Thailand,
Co., Ltd. limited liability company
BRAR

Percentage

Principal activities and Particulars of of equity
place of operations issued shares held interest held
TEERRK Frise 1T ESTE
EEL RGFH KRB
Design of computer 150,000 ordinary shares 30%

software in Hong Kong of HK$1 each
REBETEN 150,0008% B AR EE 1B 7T

Bt 2 BB
Trading and distribution of 24,500 ordinary shares 49%

electronic parts, components  of THB100 each

and equipment in Thailand 24 5000% & AR (&

100%R8% 2 E iRk

RERETEFEM -
T REREERN#
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17. Investments in Associates (continved)

(a) Investments in associates (continued)
The following table illustrates the summarized financial information
of the associates of the Group as extracted from their financial
statements:

17.

(@

ok o B A P

REEE QAT 2BRE®)
RB& AR ZRE ()

TR 5 a A S B L A RR S UG
W MEEREE -

Total assets BEEBE
Total liabilities BEERE
Revenue &
Loss E518

2011 2010
—g--&  -T-T%
HKS'000 HK$000
FHT FHT
2,190 1,185

1,050 1,156

2,850 2,173

(198) (170)

(b)  Amount due from an associate
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, with interest charged
based on the best lending rates of certain banks in Hong Kong and not
repayable within one year.

18. Inventories
Inventories consist of electronic parts, components and equipment
and computer products and accessories.

BREEEARAT | —8—% /—F——FF§

(b)

18.

FER — R B & A R RRIR

&Y — FejBgE i A B SRIR TR - 1REE
ETHRITHEEBEMNXGE - AHA
R—FREE -

7E
BFEOEETEN  AHREERENE
B RE -
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19.

Trade Receivables

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for sales
of goods ranging from 7 to 90 days. The aging analysis of the trade
receivables is as follows:

0 to 60 days 608

61 to 120 days 6121208

121 to 180 days 1212180H
181 to 365 days 18123650
Trade receivables FEUE SR

Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables g : U E FBRFX

19. EWEZFRX

AEE-—RETHEPZEEREEMAT
BENANE - BB SRR Z R DT

I
Group
A EE
2011 2010
—%F——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHEL
64,377 79.105
5130 4,787
851 1,095
2,937 8,253
73,295 93,240
R ERHE (1,543) (4,524)
71,752 88,716

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying amount of trade receivables. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security in respect of its trade receivables.

R B ARz REEERRSEK
EHERRZIEEE - ARELEEEWR

BZRFFA TR RIEAEM -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Trade Receivables (continued)

As at 31st March 2011, trade receivables of approximately
HK$32,382,000 (2010: HK$40,874,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The aging analysis of
these trade receivables is as follows:

0 to 60 days ZTZE60H

61 to 120 days 612120
121 to 180 days 12121808
181 to 365 days 1812365H

19.

ok o B A P

EWE SR 2
R-T——F=HA=+—H - 432,382,000
BT (T —T4F : 40,874,000/ 7T) Z FEUK
EZERCARETERE ZERKE
SRR T HR e B SRR 2 B 0B
UERFHR - ZERKE SRKZERY
T

Group

AEEH
2011 2010
—B——F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
26,538 30,449
3,553 1,921
624 790
1,667 7,714
32,382 40,874

As at 31st March 2011, trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,030,000 (2010: HK$4,207,000) has been assigned to a bank with
recourse as collateral under factoring arrangement (Note 22).

As at 31st March 2011, trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,543,000 (2010: HK$4,524,000) were impaired. The amount of
the provision was approximately HK$1,543,000 as at 31st March 2011
(2010: HK$4,524,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to a few customers, which are in unexpected difficult economic
situations.

BROEEERAT | —8—% /2 ——FF%

R-E——F=A=+—08 EKZEIE
K #71,030,00078 7T (= Z —Z4F : 4,207,000
BT BB L HEEE T —HRITE
BIRIER - WHARBRE(ME2) -

R-Z——F=A=+—H8 EKEZE
FR#71,543,00078 7T (=T —Z4F : 4,524,000
EBTIERME R E——F=A=+—
HzBESEMI 008 T(Z2—F
F 1 4,524,000 7T) © fERIEE R BERRE
DHEOHEEELIENCEREZREEE
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19. Trade Receivables (continued) 19. EBWEZ R @
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as FEWE 5 RFUBER E 2 ZFHIT
follows:
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—=E——fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At beginning of the year F47 4,524 1,262
Receivables written off as uncollectible WSS AT AT B 3018 2 FEUREE X (5,796) (881)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables U E 5 B8R FORE B 2,939 4125
Exchange differences P& ERE (124) 18
At end of the year F, 1,543 4524
20. Cash and Bank Balances 20. RERBITEER
Group Company
FrEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
=B——F —"ZT-TF ZB-—-—F _"ZT-TF
HK $'000 HK$'000 Hk$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FHET FHTT
Cash at bank and in hand RITMFHEBRS 39,009 46,170 707 660
Short-term bank deposits REEISRITIE A 3,404 6,098 - -
42,413 52,268 707 660
Cash and bank balances of the Group include an amount of REER S RIRITAEREFE4)2,954,00008
approximately HK$2,954,000 (2010: HK$4,532,000) denominated TL(ZF—TF : 45320008 7T ) LA A RHE
in Renminbi and kept in Mainland China. The conversion of these HEHERAFBN R B A2 5K o AiRgE
Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies and the ARBESRBINERZEE S WP E
remittance of these funds out of Mainland China is subject to the AHBEE )+ 1978 BB B AR IMNEE
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PR HIFTER R

PRC government.
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21. Trade Payables 21. EBEFREZERER
The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: B SRRZRRATHT
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
0 to 60 days EF60H 41,389 48,496
61 to 120 days 6151204 1,230 1,321
121 to 180 days 121180 (169) (75)
181 to 365 days 1812365H 1,470 89
43,920 49,831
22. Short-term Bank Loans 22. SEHARITER
All short-term bank loans are due within one year and denominated in FRERBIRITEREAR —FRIERIAT
the following currencies: HEHEEE
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHEIT
Hong Kong dollar BT 50,319 66,105
usD E7T 2,138 -
Singapore dollar TN 925 -
53,382 66,105
The effective interest rates of the short-term bank loans at the REBHE - BERITERZERFEA
reporting date range from approximately 1.69% to 2.31% (2010: 1.36% HNBIEE2NE(-ZT—TF : 136EE
t0 2.67%). 267) -
The Group’s banking facilities are secured by corporate guarantees REB ZRITEEBAARTREN AT
issued by the Company (Note 29) and the leasehold properties of the ER(H5E29) AL B 2 HEW = (i sE
Group (Note 14). 14) fEIEH o

BROEEERAT | —8—% /2 ——FF%




—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok o B i P

22,

23.

Short-term Bank Loans (continued)

The Group obtained trade receivahles factoring facility of
HK$7,000,000 (2010: HK$5,000,000). Under the facility, the Group will
receive with recourse from the bank advances representing 70% of
the Group's trade receivables due from selected customers within the
factoring limit of HK$7,000,000 (2010: HK$5,000,000) (less service
and monthly discounting charges). As at 31st March 2011, the Group
utilized the factoring facility amounted to approximately HK$722,000
(2010: HK$2,895,000).

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%).

The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account is as
follows:

Beginning of the year F4
Exchange differences ME N HR

Recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

End of the year F

22,

23.

RiFa 2HKER T HER

EHIRITER®)
AEERSERKESERRFRE
7,000,000 7T ( = & — Z 4 : 5,000,000 7%
TL) o RBEZEE - AREEERN AR
REZIRITRR - HEREREEERF
ZAREEEWRE SIRZKI0% - RISBRES
7,000,000 7T (=F —= 4 : 5,000,000/ )
(RRBEREGAIEER) BHE_Z——
F=ZA=+—H AEEEFHHATHE
& P 49722,0008 7T ( = —Z4F : 2,895,000
FETL) °

EEFREHRAR
EEFSRIZAEANERZRATEN
F165% (=T —TF : 165%) BHE -

BEPMSTHEERAEEHWT

Group
REW
2011 2010
—B——F —TTE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
162 181
15 15
69 (34)
246 162

The deferred income tax liabilities are attributable to accelerated tax
depreciation.

As at 31st March 2011, the Group had unrecognized deferred income
tax asset, primarily representing the tax effect of cumulative tax
losses (subject to the approval of the relevant tax authorities),
amounting to approximately HK$6,580,000 (2010: HK$6,262,000),
which have no expiry date.

EREARSH B ERINEREITERE -

R_ZT——F=ZA=+—8  A&EBz*k
TEREIEFT1S 1 & EE 496,580,000 L (=F
—Z4F : 6,262000%87T) + TEARRFHIA
BB (EFE AT SR EIER) 2B
& WEEmBE -
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24. Share Capital 24. WA
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Authorized: SEE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 2,000,000,0003% & I I 1E
01078 7T 2 EiBAk 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREZE
200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 200,000,0003% FAR E{E0.108 T2
Timk 20,000 20,000
25. Reserves 25. f#fE
Company
N
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus profits Total
B0 sE MARBER B8 1735 Al &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FH&T FAT FAT
(Note)
(BfF3E)
Balance at 1st April 2009 ~ R —ZTTAFINA—H 2 &% 16,706 67,097 2,838 86,641
Profit for the year FRHF = - 3,897 3,897
Dividends [iesh - - (3,000) (3,000)
Balance at RZT—FF
31st March 2010 ZA=t+—HZ&E® 16,706 67,097 3,735 87,538
Balance at 1st April 2010 RZE—ZTFNA—HZ2&H% 16,706 67,097 3,735 87,538
Profit for the year F R F = - 5,588 5,588
Dividends [N - - (5,000) (5,000)
Balance at R-E——F
31st March 2011 =A=+—Bz&e 16,706 67,097 4,323 88,126
Representing: K&K :
2011 final dividend —E——FRHPRE 4,000
Others Hb 323
4,323
Note: M3 -
Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary MABBIEARNAMBTE AR EEESR
shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries acquired through BERZTT—FHEA+N\BETZEERER
exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took place on 18th April 2001. RIPFIBIB AR 2 EEFEZER

BROEEERAT | —8—% /2 ——FF%
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26. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 26. S8R E&RERM:EE

Flows
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated from BRATISRADR AL R EBEE RS F
operations: B2 AR
2011 2010
—=E——fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Profit before income tax % BS54 5l % ) 18,964 6,827
Adjustments for: LATRIER 2 %
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment —ME - BENEEITE 1,988 2,872
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and —HEwE -
equipment R 5= K s U s (63) (35)
— Interest income —FBHA (461) (395)
— Interest expense —FERY 1,200 1,018
— Share of losses of associates — [E(RE R R 1E 62 51
Changes in working capital: OB B o5
— Inventories —FE (24,353) (9,579)
— Trade receivables — B SR 16,964 (21,161)
— Other receivables —Hip Uk R0E (199) 1.275
— Trade payables —ERE ZER (5,911) 8,530
— Other payables — H it zkE 6,777 3,754
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations gL J(BR) 2
RE R 14,968 (6,843)
27. Commitments 27. A¥E
Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the lessee KRN RE - REBIEAREA
As at 31st March 2011, the Group had future aggregate minimum RZE——F=A=+—H  A&EBE®AE
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of AR YMEZ TAIREEEZEHYBERE
rented premises as follows: HENFESEET
Group
rEE
2011 2010
==——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
No later than one year —FER 9,856 9,267
Later than one year and no later than five years —F A FETHBBARE 12,014 3,593
21,870 12,860
The Company had no commitments under operating leases as at 31st RZE—F=A=+—8 ' AQRIE
March 2011 (2010: Nil). KERAN T 2 EE(CSE—FF &) -
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28. Transaction with Non-controlling Interests
On 5th July 2010, the Group acquired an additional 40% equity
interest in Maxfair Distribution Limited (“Maxfair”) from JT Product
Limited at a cash consideration of HK$40. The carrying amount of
the non-controlling interests in Maxfair on the date of acquisition
was approximately deficit of HK$438,000. The Group recognized an
increase in non-controlling interests of approximately HK$438,000 and
a decrease in equity attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$438,000. The effect of changes in the ownership
interest of Maxfair on the equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company during the year is summarized as follows:

28.

ok o B A P

BEIFERER RS
R-ZZE—ZFLtAREA AEBMWEJT
Product Limited 12 FEE LR BR A F([ B E
K1) 40% M HE - I RERIETT o UK
BHA - BEqIEERERCREBENOR
[E541438,0007 7T AL BB IEIERE R
38NN #7438,00078 T R AR Bl IF A AR
i HE 2R R > 49438,000/8 7T © FFIN - B K
HHESEEE AN ERTE ARG
=2 BB ¢

2011

—EB——F

HK$'000

FET
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired U B IR i o 2 BRI (E (438)
Consideration paid to non-controlling interests BRI ER 2R E -

Net effect for transaction with non-controlling interests on HIFER R 2 R P E RN BEZFE A

changes in equity attributable to equity holders of the Company — fE{G#Ezs S 8h 2 5 2548 (438)
There were no transactions with non-controlling interests for the year HE_Z-—TF=A=+—HILFE - I

ended 31st March 2010.

29. Corporate Guarantees

Corporate guarantees provided by the Company
in respect of banking facilities of subsidiaries

29.

ARRBHBRRZ
RITEERMRE 2 ABER

fﬂiﬁﬁi?ﬁ Petas 2 X5

DNAEER

Company
RAT

2011 2010

—F-TF
HK$'000
FAT

-2
HK$'000
TR

87,100 175,600

As at 31st March 2011, the amount of banking facilities used by the
subsidiaries and covered by the Company’s corporate guarantees
amounted to approximately HK$50,319,000 (2010: HK$66,105,000).
In the opinion of the directors, no material liabilities will arise from
the above corporate guarantees which arose in the ordinary course of
business and the fair values of the corporate guarantees granted by
the Company are immaterial.

BROEEERAT | —8—% /2 ——FF%

RZE——F=A=+—H " WBA

E))zEPN/N Tﬁﬁ%@?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ %ﬁ
#950,319,0007% 7T (= Z —Z 4 : 66,105,000
/ETE)
£ 2 ARIERAE
AR 2 ARIERA

EFRA  LRR—REBHE
EHEALE  AFA
FEGTEX -
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30. Related Party Transactions 30. BEALRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group BRI SRS mRREMI o EEEN + K
had the following significant related party transactions during the SERFABUTEREEALRS
year:

(a)  Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and related  (a) ~ ANEEEEE A LT EAX FHEBEM

parties are summarized below: U
2011 2010
—B——fF —E—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHTT
Management fee received from RE—EHEARZ
an associate TRE (i) 96 84
Service fee received from an associate RE—REBEARZ
Ri&E (ii) 12 12
Interest income received from [ /N g
an associate FLESA 49 48
Maintenance fee paid to an associate B X —RE& A E 2
EEB (i) 587 553
Purchase of equipment from M — AR
an associate HERE - 204
Rentals paid/payable to M-Bar Limited DX E
M-Bar Limited 2 #1 % (iv), (ix) 4,290 4,308
Rentals paid/payable to a director BX
—REFZHES (v), (ix) 132 132
Rentals paid/payable to spouse BXES A
of a director —REEZEBAzES (vi), (ix) 102 102
Rentals paid/payable to UGD B %1,/ FE S FUGD Property
Property (Proprietary) Limited (Proprietary)Limited ([ UGD
(“UGD Property”) Property ) 2 & (vii), (ix) 864 672
Rentals paid/payable to Tiger Moth B %4/ & 4 Tiger Moth
Trading No.53 (Proprietary) Limited Trading No. 53 (Proprietary)
(“Tiger Moth”) Limited ([Tiger Moth ) 2 f 4 (vii), (ix) 295 269
Sales to Clover Display Limited MEERAERATIHE (viii) 328 -
Purchases from Clover Display Limited EeXREEBEAREER (viii) 2 -
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30. Related Party Transactions (continued)
(a)  (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

BRAOEEERAT | =28 —B——F5§

Management fee was received from an associate, Create Tech Software
Systems Limited at a fixed monthly rate of HK$8,000 (2010: at a fixed monthly
rate of HK$8,000 from June 2009 to March 2010 and HK$4,000 for May 2009)
for use and lease of facilities of the Group.

Service fee was received from an associate, Create Tech Software Systems
Limited at a fixed rate of HK$1,000 per month for the year ended 31st March
2011 (2010: HK$1,000 per month) for providing online-marketing related
service.

Maintenance fee was paid to an associate, Create Tech Software Systems
Limited at a fixed rate of HK$48,950 per month for the year ended 31st March
2011 during the year (2010: HK$46,100 per month) for providing maintenance
of the accounting system.

M-Bar Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mobicon Electronic Supplies
Company Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung
(20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (20%), directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company. The lease agreements with M-Bar Limited were
entered into at terms agreed between the contracting parties.

The lease agreements with Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, a director of the
Company, were entered into at terms agreed between the contracting parties.

The lease agreements with Madam Wan Lam Keng, spouse of Mr. Yeung
Kwok Leung, Allix, were entered into at terms agreed between the contracting
parties.

UGD Property and Tiger Moth are companies wholly-owned by Mr. Moutinho,
a director of Mantech Electronics (Proprietary) Limited, Langa Holdings
(Proprietary) Limited and Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited and owns 49%
interest in Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited. The lease agreements with
UGD Property and Tiger Moth were entered into at terms agreed between the
contracting parties.

Clover Display Limited is an indirect 60% owned subsidiary of A Plus Computer
Shop Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure
(30%), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung (20%) and Mr.
Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (20%), directors and substantial shareholders of the
Company. Sales to and purchases from Clover Display Limited were conducted
in the normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting
parties.

These transactions constituted continuing connected transactions as defined
in the Listing Rules.

ok o B A P

BAEALRS @

(&
P AT -

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

RE— S A RFTAIREHERAR
ZEREATHESAEMS00ET(=
Z—2F - A TENFAAE_F—
TFE= A2 EEE A &ML 00T RR
ZEENFRAZEEERMA000%ET)
AR EERERIER -

KE Mg ERRMEIREREERA
AZREEDNREE_T——F=A8
=+—BULEFEZERERTA1000%
TT(ZE—ZF : §H1,00087T) it
M EEHERARSUERER -

BEX A AR AIRIEEERA
Rz EBNREE—_T——F=A
=+—BIEFEZEREERS A48950
BIL(ZZE—F4F : §H46,100%7T) 5t
G RRIRBEEERBINER -

M-Bar Limited & B RHIEFER AT 2
2EMNBAR - ERAETFERAF
HARREERFZRF LG =L
(30%) ~ 1B @ EL T(30%) « HEE LA
(20%) B A5 BB ST A (20%) B A - 2
M-Bar Limited 57 37 2 T & 5 JH iR & 5]
RF T ZIEFHETE °

HEARNREESRREETLNEER
I ERT B TT B 2 RFRETAL »

HESRREEZRBEMBLLITILN
HEWRIIRET KB TT B E Z FFHET
ST e

UGD Property & Tiger Motht3 A&Moutinho
SE2EHEZAT ¥ AMantech
Electronics (Proprietary) Limited - Langa
Holdings (Proprietary) Limited 52 Mobicon-
Mantech Holdings Limited Z &% » A &
& 5 Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited
49% s o B2UGD Property & Tiger Moth
A HEEBRDRITNS T HEZ

&FRET L ©

BERRERARABEEMERRA
BIRRER0% 2B AR - BEEM
JEERARAAARESREERRM
R 11 (30%) - HERELL(30%)
HEE A (20% ) Rt BR ST A (20%)
EanfA - MkARERABRARH
ERBEONAEEBBETET B
BRI T W€ Z IRRRTAL

ZER GBI ETRBNAER 2 5 ER
G o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok o B i P

30.

(b)

©)

(@

Related Party Transactions (continued)

Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31st March 2011
were rental deposits paid to M-Bar Limited, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix, Madam Wan Lam Keng of approximately HK$712,000 (2010:
HK$718,000), HK$22,000 (2010: HK$22,000), HK$17,000 (2010:
HK$17,000) respectively.

Included in other payables of the Group were amounts due to minority
shareholders of certain subsidiaries of approximately HK$4,941,000
(2010: HK$4,610,000). The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Key management compensation

Short-term employee benefits veh= il =R
Post-employment benefits BERRIE

30.
(b)

©

(@

BEATRZ 2
HE-_Z——&=ZA=+—8 " B8%Xft
M-Bar Limited * #5EBREEREMNEBELZ L2
HEEEDRILT20008T( T —Z4F -
718,00078 7T ) 22,0008 L ( — T — T 4F ¢
22,0008 7T ) & 1700058 Tt ( — T — T4 ¢
17,0009 70 ) B 5T AR SR B E h FEUGRIE o

ENETHEARLDEBEREBELY
4,941,0007%8 (= F —Z4F : 4,610,000757T)
ERFAREBHMRENTKIE - BREEMNR
BAERE - R ERBREKEE -

TEEEASHE
2011 yA
—e—-%  -T-T%
HKS'000 HK$ 000
FHT T
3,210 3,040
3 36
3,306 3,076

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in Note 13(b) to
the financial statements.

EEME E—FHBRERM TR
FRHMIFE13(b)
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A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the ASREBRAABEVRFEZEAGEENREES

Group for the last five financial years is set out below: BT
Results E
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=+—HLEFE
2011 2010 2009 2008
—B-—% ZT-TF ZTTNF ZTIN\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T BT FHT T
Revenue &= 739,832 717,197 766,795 933,364 1,006,767
Profit before income tax MRETE R AR A 18,964 6,827 2,078 19,618 24,462
Income tax expense EREY (4,290) (3,331) (2,469) (5,208) (6,702)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREA(EBR) 14,674 3,496 (391) 14,410 17,760
Attributable to: A
Equity holders of the Company 7< 22 Bz 4575 A 11,591 1,843 (1,946) 10,300 14,802
Non-controlling interests Eealiig e 3,083 1,653 1,555 4,110 2,958
14,674 3,496 (391) 14,410 17,760
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Assets and Liabilities BEREE

As at 31st March
R=A=+—H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

—g——% -“T-TF -TTAF "TT\F "TRLF
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
TR T Titz T T

Property, plant and equipment  #72 - = K& 13,400 12,804 13,508 17,269 9,072
Intangible assets EILEE - - - 907 2,751
Investments in associates REEE N R ZIRE 1,013 441 724 819 731
Current assets MENEE 301,954 304,540 257,503 293,990 306,921
Total assets EEHE 316,367 317,785 271,735 312,985 319,475
Current liabilities mEaRE (125,066) (136,041) (95,464) (123,878) (133,241)
Net current assets FEEEFE 176,388 168,499 162,039 170,112 173,680
Total assets less EEAERABERE

current liabilities 191,301 181,744 176,271 189,107 186,234
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFFER & & (246) (162) (181) (490) (596)
Net assets BEFE 191,055 181,582 176,090 188,617 185,638
Capital and reserves KpEERBFEA

attributable to the BhERRHE

equity holders of

the Company
Share capital f& A 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Reserves & 150,619 143,045 139,649 152,222 151,890

170,619 163,045 159,649 172,222 171,890

Non-controlling interests  JE3= g% 20,436 18,537 16,441 16,395 13,748
Total equity R 191,055 181,582 176,090 188,617 185,638
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